CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO,, LIMITED

maBr FRE IR AR A T

(Joint Provisional Liquidators appointed)
(EBEHFERREEA)
(For restructuring purposes only)

(EBERRRREAR)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(RS EEMmI ARAR)

(Stock Code B 15 15 5%: 1822) §

ANNUAL REPORT

2022




Contents

B %

56
59
60
63
195

Corporate Information

Management Discussion and Analysis

Biographical Details of Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NEER

EEA =R SN
EZFHEERE
EEEBRS

EFgRE
BB S
roEnmkHAMEERAK

EMBRRE
roEmEET
RERERER
IR MR M R
hFEMBRHE

BT FEFER

01



Corporate Information

AEEH

DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Mr. Lyu NingJiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu YongGang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Xianming
Mr. Chan Lik Shan
(appointed on 27 January 2023)
Mr. So Yin Wai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Pak Chung

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Lyu NingdJiang
Mr. Lee Pak Chung

£
WITES
WKL (ZERERHITE)

FRITES
BAK B S

BIJFAITES
HERLE
BRI
R =F—-A-+tHEZD
BRERSTE

AEME
IR
RiERE
S TEL
IR

02 CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED HAREIRIZEREBIRAE]



Corporate Information

AEEH

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhao Xianming (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Lik Shan

(appointed on 27 January 2023)
Mr. So Yin Wai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lyu NingJiang (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Xianming
Mr. Chan Lik Shan
(appointed on 27 January 2023)
Mr. So Yin Wai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhao Xianming (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Lik Shan
(appointed on 27 January 2023)
Mr. So Yin Wai

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

BZEEY

HMERLE (FE)

BRAWESE
MNZEBE_=F—A-+tHEZD

RBREEG
SETHE (ZR)
MBI L
BRAWLSEE

MERSE

HiNEEE

HERLE (FE)

BRAWEE
MNZEBE_=F—A-++tHEZD

BERNELRE
SEBSBERERAT
&5
2/EAER1835
AR 0221%

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —ZE - —FFR

03



Corporate Information

AEEH

WEBSITE

www.chinawoodint.com.hk

STOCK CODE
01822

LEGAL ADVISOR

(Hong Kong Law)

Michael Li & Co

19/F., Prosperity Tower,

No. 39 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

24/F., Siu On Centre

188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

1601, 16/F., Sun House
90 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

3rd Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

George Town Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

A

www.chinawoodint.com.hk

ah R

01822

AR
(&BEH)

252 B R AT B 5
&5

2 EAERI9H
AR AE191E

FEERRIT

RBIRITRHDBRAE EEDT

% EEm

£E (B8 gsMEBMERAE
HEEHED

58

(7 E& 721818858

JKZeHp0241E

SN EE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

MMEERERTEESFME

&%
FEREFHI05E
REFIT16181601F

FERMDBRETERE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

3rd Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

George Town Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

04 CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED FAREIRIZERARRAR



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEsm R th

BUSINESS REVIEW

To all shareholders,

In 2022 (the “Year”), the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
("COVID-19") continued to rage around the world, with continued
emergence of new variants during the Year, slowing economic
growth of the PRC. At the same time, there has been slump in
activities in the retail sector and property sector during the Year,
driven by the resurgence of the COVID-19, tightening government
policy and multiple lockdowns in the PRC. As a result, the
business environment in which the Group operates remains to be
challenging and tough during the Year.

Wood-related Business

During the Year, the Company has exerted considerable efforts
in further developing its core wood-related business, including
wood management, distribution and processing of wood and
timber products by expanding its business to the downstream of
the supply chain into antique-style wood furniture manufacturing,
processing, and sales, for which the products are primarily made of
red mahogany wood and yellow sandalwood.

It is the Group's intention to venture into an eco-friendly industry
for the benefit and well-being of society, all mankind, and their
descendants. The Directors believe that by taking part in the
development of an environment-focused wood industry, it will be
meaningful and beneficial to the future of the Group and society as
a whole.

With the continuous efforts of the Company and the valuable
expertise and extensive business connections brought to the
Group by Mr. Lyu, the revenue generated from the wood-related
business has increased substantially from approximately HK$104.4
million in 2021 to approximately HK$133.0 million in the Year.

EF5olEE

EES: 1

RZ2ZZF (TFA)) - HETERKES (5
ERMREs)) NREEBELIKEE B
ZENTEMERNLIER BEDPELEE
BR-HEIEFEF ARFTEESREERIES
TER RPENEEEBFBRRZRE
HREREREMERRBREANTIE -H
I RER FEEBENEFRENHAT
kB BR 7 ER B o

A AR ER

RER> AABNHBEKRE 1 ZBRE
BREREHBE T HEANOARM (Em
TERARARREBARE) MRS MITR
HE  E—THEEROAMBBAES (B
A EE URAM AN ERBIN T RS
iH) o

FEERYIERREX BERULE - 2AE
REBR - EFERX RS HERFEAMERNE
EYARAEEREBEALEREARERAD
Ay e

ERARBNTEHBE O RELEAETER
RN EEEENARBEZNERR G
AMBERERELENREH S -_—FW
#9104,400,000 B T BBEE R M EFR VL
133,000,000 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —Z__FF#H 05



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEwmA D

Processing and distribution of furniture wood

Since late 2020, the Group has established China Wood Green
Resources (Shenzhen) Co., Limited* FRARABEIR (R BIR
‘A ("CWGreen"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, as
the main operating company to develop the Group's core wood-
related business, which is principally engaged in the provision
of comprehensive supply chain management services and the
processing and distribution of a variety of furniture woods, which
mainly comprise of red mahogany wood, sandalwood, rosewood,

pine wood, and fir wood, sourced in the PRC and overseas.

The Group’s revenue generated from the processing and
distribution of furniture wood for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$120.4 million (2021: approximately HK$104.4

million).

Manufacturing and sales of antique-style wood furniture and other
wooden products

In addition to the processing and distribution of furniture wood
business, CWGreen has further tapped into the downstream
sector of the wood-related business, being the manufacturing and
sales of antique-style wood furniture and other wooden products
in 2022. The antique-style wood furniture is mostly made of red
mahogany wood as raw material, which is professionally designed
by the in-house product design and development department
of the Group. Such wood furniture is considered to be high-end
with artistic value, which is primarily treated as decorative arts
with practical functions. As such, both general consumers and art
collectors in the market are attracted to the Group's antique-style
wood furniture. Besides, the Group also designs common indoor
wood products made of less expensive wood materials, which offer
affordable pricing to the general consumers and enable the Group

to expand and diversify its customer base.

The Group's revenue generated from the manufacturing and
sales of antique-style wood furniture and other wooden products
amounted to approximately HK$12.6 million for the Year (2021:
HKS$Nil).

*  For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEsm R th

Car Rental Business

The Car Rental Business has been one of the core businesses of the
Group since 2014. Beijing Tu An Car Rental Services Limited* (3t
R ABEHEEAREEAT) ("Beijing Tu An”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been responsible for

operating the Group's car rental services business in the PRC.

The normal rental terms of Beijing Tu An’s car fleet with its
customers ranges from three months to two years or longer.
Premium customers of Beijing Tu An would specify the brand
and model of the rented car and Beijing Tu An would acquire the
rented car according to premium customers’ requirements. By the
end of the contractual term, Beijing Tu An will retain the right to
dispose of the used car and keep the proceed, as income. The
rental charged by Beijing Tu An to its customers is made with
reference to current rental rates for each particular car models and

adjusted according to the then prevailing market condition.

In 2021, Beijing Tu An has entered into a vehicles rental agreement
in Beijing (the “VRA") with ItREBBEREMERRAR
(“Beijing DeRunFeng”), a company founded and owned by the
non-executive director of the Company, Mr. Hu YongGang, for the
supply of its existing car fleet to Beijing Tu An to further develop
its business. Under the VRA, Beijing Tu An has leased from Beijing
DeRunFeng a total of sixteen (16) premium executive cars together
with vehicle licenses for Beijing Tu An'’s car rental business to let out

to its customers.
For the Year, the car rental business segment of the Group

recorded a revenue of approximately HK$11.9 million (2021:
approximately HK$11.2 million).

*  For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Since 2020, the Group has been continuously developing its
core wood-related business, which included the processing
and distribution of furniture wood business, and manufacturing
and sales of antique style wood furniture and other wooden
products. The Directors believe that the Group has accumulated
its experience and expertise in the wood-related business, and will
continue to develop and expand its operations in the foreseeable

future.

The Group plans to increase market penetration of its antique-style
wood furniture and other wooden products by diversifying its sales
and distribution channels.

The Directors also plan to deploy additional marketing and
promotional expenses for the Group's products to further tap into
and enhance brand awareness in various online platforms in the
PRC.

The Group will continue to explore potential opportunities
for strategic cooperation with market players such as China
Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp. Ltd.* (F#Z/\/F%
B3EFABRAE), which is an enterprise approved by the Ministry
of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC as a qualified
enterprise for new housing construction and Qingdao Hisense
Real Estate Co. Ltd.* (BEEEEBMERIDBREAE), one of the
leading property developers originated in the Shandong province,
in the mid-stream to downstream of the industry value chain,
such as real estate developers, high-end furniture brand retailers,
logistics management services providers, as well as management

expertise to further expand the Group's wood-related business.

*  For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEsm R th

FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING

Appointment of the Joint Provisional Liquidators for
restructuring purpose in Cayman Islands

Having explored different options to restructure the debts of the
Company, the Board decided to implement a management led
restructuring under a court-supervised provisional liquidation
regime pursuant to the laws of the Cayman Islands, commonly
known as a “light touch” provisional liquidation, which provides
a statutory moratorium prohibiting the commencement or
continuance of any proceedings against the Company without the
leave of the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman
Court”) in the Cayman Islands.

Accordingly, in order to facilitate the Company’s financial
restructuring, a winding up petition together with an application
for the appointment (the "JPL Application”) of joint and
several provisional liquidators (the “"JPLs”) of the Company (for
restructuring purposes) on a light touch approach for restructuring
purposes was presented and filed with the Cayman Court by the
Company.

The JPL Application was heard before the Cayman Court on 2
February 2021 (Cayman Islands time). The Cayman Court made the
orders as sought by the Company under the JPL Application, inter
alia, Osman Mohammed Arab and Lai Wing Lun of RSM Corporate
Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, and Martin Nicholas John Trott of
R&H Restructuring (Cayman) Ltd., were appointed as JPLs of the
Company on a light touch approach for restructuring purpose.
Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 2
February 2021 and 5 February 2021 for details.

On 28 January 2022, the Company's solicitors has taken out an ex
parte originating summons with the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “Hong Kong Court”) for the
hearing on 8 February 2022 of an application by the Company
for an order to convene a meeting of the creditors (the “Scheme
Meeting”) of the Company to consider and, if thought fit, approve,
with or without modification, a scheme of arrangement (the
“Scheme”) proposed by the Company, pursuant to section 670
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). By an order of the Hong
Kong Court, the Scheme Meeting was to be convened on 11
March 2022.

AF5E4H
REARBENEBEHRABREBA

RERNBEHEARAREFTNIRER EFE
RERBEHRSESZREEREENERS
BEIETETHEEETEMNER (BREIE
M) LR EE) HIRMUAEEREN
REUNHASEENHASEEXNENR (A8
&) TR RUEH AR RBREEET
ERIEFER

Fit > B ERRARNMBEHR > ARF M
MEZEnRXFEEFERNZELRFHE
REpEREEEA ((HEARFETEA) (G
SHEMN) NG (HFREFEEARR)
ML NEA

A _E_—F"F”"H (HEHEKMHE) -
HEBRFFEARFEERHASERETR
MeoHEERERBHBEHRIEE ARG
EHARBI SRV < (HPEHE) BHE
TrEERERANEERAREAB UK
R&H Restructuring (Cayman) Ltd.BIMartin
Nicholas John Trott EZ T4 A A B H[F 6
FEERR A BIIEURE B BRAFE
FE2RAARHBRAE_—F"_A"HK
TET—FZAEHBNRSE-

RIZEZZTHF—AZ+N\B AABEME
EAFIITHResE Ak (TE&/ZER)) &
HEFRFERE MEERN_SEZI2FZ
BNANHEAAKRRBIRIEFE22E A BEGE
GTORIRRINERE DB RBECARERE
ERAGE ((st8EE) UTERNES
##E FRBGES]) AR EENZHE
(Tet81)) - RIBLEFEBEARENES 2R
BR_E__—F#=F+—HB%£f7-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —Z__FF#H 09



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEwmA D

On 16 February 2022 (after trading hours), the Company, the
JPLs, the Investor and Mr. Lyu have entered into the conditional
Restructuring Agreement, pursuant to which the Company will
carry out the Restructuring Transactions involving (i) the Capital
Reorganisation; (i) the Investor's Subscription; and (iii) the Scheme.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2022 for details of the Restructuring Agreement and the

Restructuring Transactions.

At the Scheme Meeting convened and held on 11 March 2022, the
Scheme was approved by the requisite statutory majorities of the
creditors. On 22 March 2022, the Company's solicitors received a
letter from the Hong Kong Court informing that Mr. Justice Harris
will make an order to sanction the Scheme without modification.
The sealed sanction order was delivered to the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong on 26 April 2022.

As announced in the announcement of the Company dated
10 March 2022 and the circular in relation to the Restructuring
Transactions and the Whitewash Waiver dated 5 August 2022, the
Funding Agreement dated 31 December 2020 was entered into
between the Company as the borrower and the Investor as the
lender to provide the funding for the Company to continue and
further develop its business. On 17 October 2022, the Funding
Agreement, the terms and funding already provided and to be

provided thereunder, have been sanctioned by the Cayman Court.

All the proposed resolutions in relation to the Capital
Reorganisation, the Investor’s Subscription, the Scheme, and
the Whitewash Waiver were duly passed by the Shareholders
or the Independent Shareholders (as the case may be) at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 30 August 2022, and
the Executive Director of the Corporate Department of SFC has
granted the Whitewash Waiver on 22 August 2022 subject to,
among other matters, no acquisition or disposal of voting rights
being made by the Investor and its concert parties between
the date of the announcement of the Investor's Subscription
and the completion of the Investor's Subscription. Please refer
to the circular of the Company dated 5 August 2022 and the
announcement of the Company dated 30 August 2022 for details.

The legal adviser of the Company as to Cayman Islands law is
preparing the petition to be made to the Cayman Court for an

order confirming the Capital Reorganisation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group

Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$145.4 million, which represented
an increase of approximately 25% as compared to the revenue of
approximately HK$116.1 million as recorded for the year ended
31 December 2021. The increase was mainly resulted from the
increase in turnover on wood-related business from approximately
HK$104.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$133.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Cost of sales and services rendered

Cost of sales and services rendered of the Group grew by
approximately 19% from approximately HK$101.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$121.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales volume of wood products
goods during the Year.

Gross profit and margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$24.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing an
increase of approximately 67% as compared to the gross profit
recorded in the prior year. The gross profit margin increased from
12.4% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 16.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Other income, gains and (losses), net

Other income, gains and (losses), net of the Group improved, from
net losses of approximately HK$48.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to net gain of approximately HK$3.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The difference was primarily
due to the net effect of the (i) fair value gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") of approximately
HK$1.0 million for the Year (2021: losses of approximately HK$46.4
million); and (ii) loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, net of approximately HK$1.8 million for the Year (2021:
approximately HK$2.2 million).

Allowances for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade, loan and
other receivables, net

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had recorded
allowances for “expected credit losses” (“ECLs”) on trade, loan
and other receivables of approximately HK$35,578,000 (2021:
HK$2,850,000) in total which is mainly comprising of allowances
for ECLs on trade receivables of approximately HK$Nil (2021:
HK$1,020,000); and allowances for ECLs on other receivables of
HK$35,578,000 (2021: HK$1,830,000).

To properly account for the risk adhered to those long outstanding
trade, loan and other receivables as, the management of the
Company has engaged an independent valuer to assess the
risk of potential losses based on the management’s estimate of
the lifetime ECLs, which are estimated by taking into account
the credit loss experience, ageing of the trade receivables,
debtors’ settlement records and financial status, expected
timing and amount of realisation of outstanding balances and
ongoing business relationship with debtors. The management
also considered forward-looking information that may impact the
debtors’ abilities to repay the outstanding balances in order to
estimate the allowances for ECLs on trade receivables.

There has been no significant changes in inputs and assumption
applied in 2022 as compared with those applied in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased from
approximately HK$0.4 million during the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately HK$1.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The increase was mainly due to increase in
selling and distribution staff costs incurred in facilitating business
operations in the PRC and the marketing and promotional
expenses incurred in online platforms.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
42% from approximately HK$15.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately HK$22.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly due to
professional costs incurred in respect of Scheme and application
for resumption.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased from approximately HK$117.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$113.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately
HK$3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately HK$0.2 million), mainly on operating profits of the
Group's wood products business in the PRC.
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MEgE_Z-__F+ZA=+—HIFE
B9#91,000,00078 7T ° 5% g N E EHPIEEF
BMEREEEENHERDHEETINA K
RELTFEEENTHSEEREHERIZ
e

1T E
AEENTHERABE S - —F+A
=+—HIEFEEBAI15,800,00078 7T MNAT
REHE_SZ_"F+"A=1+—HILHF
E/#4922,400,0008 75 o ZIE M EZE AR
SRR REEREENEXER-

HERGE
BERNARBEE_E - —F+B=+—
HIEEE®L117,700,0008 Tt b EHE
TECE+ A=+ —HIEEENY
113,700,000 7T

iR
BE_ZT__S#+_B=+—HLEEE K
EEEEFEMRER43,900,0008T (&
— —%F 1 #9200,00057T) c T EEARERR
R RS R EESE S H AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —Z__FF#H 13



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEsm Rk th

Significant Investments Held HENEAKRE

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group BE-T-_"FR-_FT-—F+-H=+—
had the following significant investments held with a value of 5 per BILEFE  AEBEFEUTEEEREER
cent. or more of the Group's total assets which were classified as E5% U EE DR AT EF AB TN

financial assets at FVTPL: THEENEEARKRE :
Performance/ Size as  Total amount
Number of Change in compared  of dividends
shares of  Percentage fair value to the Group's received
Fair value  investments of investments forthe  total assets for the
as at held as at held asat  year ended asat  year ended
Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
costs 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
#E
~ECCE i #BE
AZEZZE RMIECZ +ZB %@ ZZ-Z
gt Jenpe +=B +=B =+-A ZIZBCZE +28

+ZR =+-H =+-H LLEER +ZR =+-H
=+-B HENRD  RENRE g/ =+-H LLEEN

Name of the investments RERHE REMS WATE REHE Bl ATESY HELERE BHRRLHE
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000)
(Fi#5m) (Fi#5) (Fi#5) (Fi#5m)
Zhongxin (Heilongjiang) Internet EP?ﬁ ( D BRANE N/A!
Microfinance Co., Ltd.* EXERAT 111,750 - iR 2 S 0 =
Zuoshishi Technology Service Wgﬁiﬁﬁﬁ% (7 N/A**
(Beijing) Company Limited* ERAR 67,050 11,225 FER " 180 6 -
Spring Power Holdings Limited Spring Power Holdings
Limited 23,474 1,030 498 3 (719) 1 -
Performance/ Sizeas  Total amount
Number of Change in compared  of dividends
sharesof  Percentage fair value  to the Group's received
Fairvalue  investments of investments forthe  total assets for the
as at held as at heldasat  year ended asat  yearended
Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
costs 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
HE
ZT-F RN BE
RIEZ-& RIB”-%# +ZA FEE  “BT-f
RIB--F +ZA +ZR =+-B B -F +Z8
+ZA =+-H =+-f IFEER +ZA =+-H

=+-A FENRG  HERRE 2E/ =+—f LEEER

Name of the investments RELHE REME NATE REHE BAt  ATEEH BEQERERE CURELE
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000)
(FE7) (F#7n) (FA7) (FE7)
Zhongxin (Heilongjiang) Internet Hi (BRL) B NE N/A
Microfinance Co., Ltd.* ERERAT 111,750 - TER 2 (4,744) 0 =
Zuoshishi Technology Service HEZRERS 00R) N/Ax*
(Beijing) Company Limited* BRAF 67,050 11,045 B 11 (32,221) 5 S
Spring Power Holdings Limited Spring Power Holdings
Limited 23,474 1,749 498 3 (8,873) 1 -

# represented by RMB100,000,000 out of total registered capital of * KR EEME R ARBES,272,000,0007cH A R 1
RMB5,272,000,000. 100,000,0007T °

ki represented by RMB1,029,963 out of total registered capital of RMB9,363,296.  ** RRE2HFMERARE?, 363,296 T HFHNARTE
1,029,9637¢ °

* For identification purposes only.
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Description of the investments

Zhongxin (Heilongjiang) Internet Microfinance Co., Ltd.* is
an unlisted company established in the PRC which principally
engaged in internet microfinance business. The industry of this
company continued to be under stringent government reformation
policies in China in recent years. In light of the deteriorating
financial performance and the uncertainty in the debt collection

rate, the valuation of this investment remained at HK$Nil.

Zuoshishi Technology Service (Beijing) Company Limited* is
an unlisted company established in the PRC which principally
engaged in the provision of innovation service for start-up
technology companies and related investment activities. The
capital market in China has experienced high volatility during
the year as being affected by the global COVID-19 pandemic
and similar fluctuations appeared in the capital market in US and
Europe. GDP growth in China was significantly slowed down in
years 2021 and 2022 which has hindered the future outlook of the
business sector and affected the result of the valuation conducted

by independent valuer.

Spring Power Holdings Limited is an unlisted company established
in BVI that controls a group of companies principally engaged
in development and manufacturing of human like robots. The
financial performance of this company has stabilized but still
fell short of original projection and lowered the expectation to
its future profitability and consequently affected the valuation

conducted by independent valuer.

Share Consolidation

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2020, the Company
implemented the share consolidation of every twenty shares into
one consolidated share (the “Share Consolidation”). The Share
Consolidation was effected on 26 June 2020.

*  For identification purposes only
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Liquidity and Financial Position RBEE R BN
2022 2021
—E-C BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Current assets MENEE 136,060 162,596
Current liabilities MEIEE 1,592,572 1,487,240
Current ratio REPEEXR 0.09 0.11

At 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$4.1 million (2021: approximately
HK$2.5 million). As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings amounted approximately
HK$846.9 million (2021: approximately HK$798.0 million).

On the basis of the considerations as disclosed in the note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022, the Board is confident that the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to meet its debt repayment and
finance needs for its operations for the foreseeable future.

RIE_ZF+ZRA=+—H > A£ENR
S RIBEEEYWH54,100,0008 7T (ZF
T~ —4F 492,500,000 7T) R ZBE -

+ZA=+—8B AEENFERITREM
EE#47%4846,900,0008 T (T _—F 1 &
798,000,000 7T) °

REAEEHEE T -+ -_B=+—H
LHEENGFEEMHBRENF2RAREEZ R
R EFEREEAEERARRRERTAY
BERBNHBRHEEREEBIRET

==
= °

Gearing Ratio BEAM[AILEER
2022 2021
- BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx AT
Total bank and other borrowings IRIT R EMIEE42%E 846,873 797,978
Total assets BEMEE 196,155 230,825
Gearing ratio BEAMEE 431.74% 345.71%

The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase in

borrowings as a result of increased activities for the year.

EERBLERENDEEHNERERED
EMEREEIRIATER -
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As at 31 December 2022, the maturity profile of the bank and
other borrowings of the Group falling due within one year
amounted to approximately HK$846.9 million (2021: approximately
HK$798.0 million),
approximately HK$55.7 million (2021:

million) were denominated in Renminbi.

of which bank and other borrowings of

approximately HK$59.2

Capital Structure

The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As
at 31 December 2022, the total number of the ordinary shares
of the Company was 342,572,857 (2021: 342,572,857) (with an
aggregate nominal value of approximately HK$68.5 million (2021:
approximately HK$68.5 million)).

Charges on the Group's Assets

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's other borrowings
were secured by the Group's trade receivables of gross amount
approximately HK$600.6 million (2021: approximately HK$400.6

million).

Foreign Currency Exposure

The foreign currency exposure of the Group primarily arises from
revenue or income generated, cost and expenses incurred and
certain bank and other borrowings denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the Group's operating
units. For the Group's operating units that have United States
dollar and Renminbi as their functional currencies, their foreign
currency transactions and the units’ monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that were translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at 31 December
2022 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was
not significant and therefore had not engaged in any hedging

activities.

RIEZZF+ZA=+—H AxEER—
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——%F : 959,200,000 70) U A REEHE o
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Contingent Liabilities

On 21 April 2020, a writ of summons was issued by an
independent third party in Beijing, China as plaintiff against a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group namely Qb RE R EE
IEEPRAF)as defendant (the “Action”). The plaintiff claimed
for the repayment of principal and the accrued interests of a
loan purportedly owed by the defendant to the plaintiff in the
total amount of approximately RMB59.5 million since 2014 (the
"Purported Loan"”). The defendant has denied the existence
of the Purported Loan and has requested forensic checks to be
conducted to the loan agreement produced by the Plaintiff to the
People’s Court in Chaoyang District, Beijing (the “Beijing Court”).
The Company has engaged a competent legal advisor to act for its

interests in respect of the Action.

In January 2022, the Group received a judgement (the
“Judgement”) from the Beijing Court and ordered that the
defendant be required to pay a sum of approximately RMB37.0
million plus damages of RMB7.5 million for breach of contract.
Immediately after the Judgement, the Group has made an appeal
to the Beijing No. 3 Intermediate People’s Court QbR 88 =4k
AR %EFR) against the Judgement. In April 2022, the Beijing No. 3
Intermediate People’s Court dismissed the Group's appeal against
the Judgement. The Group has taken steps to apply for retrial of
the case.

A provision for claim in the amount of RMB44.5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$54,490,000) was made during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no member of
the Group was engaged in any litigation or arbitration or claims
which would materially or adversely affect the operations of the
Company and no litigation, arbitration or claim which would
materially or adversely affect the operations of the Company
was known to the directors of the Company to be pending or

threatened by or against any member of the Group.

Capital Commitments

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
capital commitments amounted to approximately HK$33.8 million
(2021: approximately HK$36.7 million).
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 64 (2021:
16) employees. Total costs including the emoluments of the
directors of the Company, amounted to approximately HK$6.9
million for the year (2021: approximately HK$4.3 million). The
emolument policy of the Group is determined with reference
to the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees (including Directors), as well as the results of the Group
and the market conditions. The Group provides discretionary
bonus, medical insurance, provident fund, education subsidy and
training to its employees.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during the year
ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for major
capital assets or other business. However, the Group will continue
to identify new opportunities for business development.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING OF THE SHARES

At the request of the Company, trading in the shares of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) has been suspended with effect from 9:00 a.m.
on 22 October 2021 and will remain suspended until further notice.

The Board has appointed a corporation licensed to carry out
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) as the financial adviser to the Company on matters
relating to the resumption of trading in the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange. The Company has submitted a resumption
plan to the Stock Exchange on 16 March 2023 to address the
Resumption Guidance. The Company is working closely with its
professional advisers and taking appropriate steps to fulfill the
conditions in the Resumption Guidance as stated in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 October 2021 and will update the
shareholders and potential investors of the Company on, among
others, the progress as and when appropriate.
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REMOVAL OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION

In view of the circumstances disclosed in the “Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion” above, the Company, after discussing with the
Company's auditors, understands that the “Disclaimer of Opinion”
in relation to the Group's going concern, based on the current
conditions and circumstances, will be removed in the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December

2023 should the Group succeed in completing the Restructuring.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Reference is made to the disclosure in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of (i) the appointment of the
joint provisional liquidators for restructuring purposes only; (ii)
restructuring; and (iii) suspension of trading in the shares of the
Company. Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company
to update the shareholders and investors of the Company in
relation to any developments of the aforementioned matters.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the comparative figures have been restated to conform
with current year's presentation. The changes mainly included
and

separate disclosure of items under “deferred tax assets”

"deferred tax liabilities”.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lyu NingJiang, aged 63, was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director on 3 December 2020. He has
received education in mainland China with a forestry major. He
had worked with various foresty-related corporations in mainland
China with extensive experience in the wood business. Mr. Lyu
has over 15 years of experience in senior corporate management.
Mr. Lyu was the chairman and chief executive of China Wood
Group Company Limited* (FEIARH ((2E) BIRAB]) during the
period from 1998 to 2013. Mr. Lyu was redesignated as the senior
consultant of China Wood Group Company Limited* (FREIAAMT (8
&) BBRA 7)) from 2013 to 2018.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu YongGang, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 3 December 2020. He has received education in
mainland China with an international trade major. Mr. Hu has over
twenty years of extensive experience in the automobile business in
mainland China and he operates automobile dealers, 4S spareparts
service shops and car rental business for almost 17 years. Mr. Hu
is the founder owner of BeiJing DeRunFeng Car Rental Company
Limited* Qb REHERBEHAERR LT since 2012.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Xianming, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 July 2014. He assumed various
positions such as the supervisor of the legal and auditorial center of
Fanhua Construction Group Limited* CZZ 2R EBBRAE), the
general legal counsel, the vice-president and the board secretary
of China Agritech Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market). He graduated from China Foreign Affairs University with a
master degree of International Law and is a certified enterprise risk

manager.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. Chan Lik Shan, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 27 January 2023. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
Hong Kong Baptist University, a Master's Degree in Law from
The Renmin University of China, and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of working experience
with multinational and sizeable companies including The
Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Limited, Xinhua Finance Limited,
Cheeminmet Finance Limited, Aureos Capital Limited, Global
Group International Holdings Limited, and China Youth Galaxy
Capital Holdings Limited, in private equity investment, mergers
and acquisitions, corporate finance, the capital market in Hong

Kong, and post-deal investment management.

Mr. So Yin Wai, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 December 2021. Mr. So graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1986 and he has
been in the accounting profession for more than 30 years. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has previously worked for
international public accounting firms and been involved in the
audit of a number of international and local engagements and
listed companies. He is currently the sole practitioner of his own
firm “Alex So & Co. (Certified Public Accountants)”. Apart from his
auditing experiences, Mr. So also specializes in company secretarial
work, tax planning and management consultancy matters. Mr. So
is the chairman of “New SOHO New Life Association” and the
former chairman of “Chinese Business Association”. He is also the
honorary auditor of a number of voluntary organizations, including
“"Hong Kong Parkinson’s Disease Foundation” and “HK Po Yin

Association for the Development of Education”.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 December 2022. This report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures and regards a pre-eminent
board of directors, sound internal controls and accountability to
all shareholders as the core elements of its corporate governance
principles. The Company endeavours to ensure that its businesses
are conducted in accordance with rules and regulations, and
applicable codes and standards. The Company has adopted the
Code Provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Board reviews at least annually the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure its continuous compliance with
the Code, and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.
The Company was in compliance with the applicable code
provisions in the Code (the “Code Provision”) for the year ended
31 December 2022. The following sections set out the principles
in the Code as they have been applied by the Company, including
any deviations therefrom, for the year under review.

BOARD

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for
overseeing the overall strategy and development of the Company,
as well as monitoring the internal control policies and evaluating
the financial performance of the Group. The Board sets the overall
strategies and directions for the Group with a view to developing

its business and enhancing the shareholders’ value.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises one
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details

of Directors” of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Lyu NingJiang, being the chairman of the Company (the
“Chairman”) is responsible for the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. Code Provision C.2.1 requires
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Lyu, being the Chairman, has also been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Group (the “Chief Executive Officer”)
who will keep provided strong and consistent leadership to
achieve strategic business growth of the Group to enable a better
execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that the
roles of both chairman and chief executive officer vested in the
same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. All the Board
members will be ensured to keep abreast of adequate, complete
and reliable information by Mr. Lyu on issues to be discussed
at Board meetings. Moreover, the independent non-executive
Directors (the “"INEDs") provide independent and professional
opinion on issues addressed at Board meetings and therefore,
the Board believes that there is a balance of power and authority
governed by the current Board structure with more than half of
them being the INEDs and does not intend to make significant
change in the composition of the Board. The Board will continue
to review the Board composition from time to time and shall
make necessary changes when appropriate in a timely manner

accordingly and inform the Company’s shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the period from 26 May 2022 to 31 May 2022 and the
period from 1 November 2022 to 31 December 2022, the
Company failed to meet the following requirements of the Listing
Rules as the resolution to re-elect Mr. An Dong as an INED was not
passed at the annual general meeting held on 26 May 2022; and
as a result of the resignation of Ms. Zhao Xiao Lian on 1 November
2022 respectively:

1.  the board of directors must include at least three
independent non-executive directors, under Rule 3.10(1) of
the Listing Rules; and

2. the audit committee comprising non-executive directors only
and with a minimum of three members under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of
independent non-executive directors of the Company shall

represent not less than one-third of the Board throughout the Year.

On 27 January 2023, Mr. Chan Lik Shan was appointed as an INED
and there has been a sufficient number of INEDs. The Company
has thereafter complied with the above requirements of the Listing

Rules.

The Company has received from each of its INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.
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During the Year, the attendance of each Director is set out below:

FER BEFHHFEBROT ¢

Meeting attended/
meetings entitled to
attend
BRUEERY,
Director B3 ARHERY
Executive Directors RITES
Mr. Lyu NingJiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BELRYE FREERITE) mm
Non-executive Directors EHMITES
Mr. Hu Yong Gang KM L E 11/11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTESR
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLE 1/11
Mr. An Dong (ceased on 26 May 2022) ZREFE RZEZ_FRR -+, \AEMD 4/4
Ms. Zhao Xiao Lian (appointed on 1 June 2022 and MNELE (R "FRA-REZAE
resigned on 1 November 2022) WHZ ?Z:E‘I' A—HBED 4/4
Mr. Chan Lik Shan (appointed on 27 January 2023) BALLE W_E_=F—FB_+tHEZD N/A
TER
Mr. So Yin Wai BERRE 11

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term but are subject

to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general

PREBIIFRITESIRIRAREIH &
ARBAAFEBREERMINRRBEEAE

meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of the ER{EE(EREEE-

Company.

COMMITTEES

As part of the corporate governance practices, the Board has HGREEAERT EFFTEMUFTNEE
established the remuneration committee, nomination committee, 8
and audit committee. All of the committees are mainly composed ¥ FZHBIUIFHNTESAM > W ERER

%8

WE)

N

o~

E RLZEEKRBEREZEEE-FIAZ

4} 1§ 0

of INEDs with terms of reference in accordance with the principles  BIFT &0 /RAIEE Sk EHE -

set out in the Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 27 November 2009 with written
terms of reference. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises all of the INEDs, namely
Mr. Zhao Xianming, Mr. Chan Lik Shan and Mr. So Yin Wai, and is
chaired by Mr. Zhao Xianming.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
formulating remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages of executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Directors.
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendations on the remuneration packages of the existing

Directors.

Details of the remuneration paid to members of the senior
management of the Group (including the Directors) by band for the
Year are set out below:

HiNEEE

ARBR_BENF+—AZ+tHBUE
EEDREEENGFNZES (HMES
®)) REAFEHRBAH FMEZETNRESR
EMAEBYIFRITES RBEERLE M
DUEERKERITE - HERLERAZE
BEMNEF-

HMZE G EERF D EIETFHBNEER  #
ERTESHNEBHFMNGE URAEFE
REERESEHNNREZ R FMES
ERNRAEENFNFELREES

FEEENFEESREEENE (BEE

) ZFMEENT

Number of senior
management (including
the Directors)

SREERE (BEES)
Remuneration band HEMEE PN |
Below HK$1,000,000 187%1,000,000%8 7T 15
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017875 21,500,000/ 75
During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held FR > HMEETRITT —RZZHF > TXH
and the attendance of each member is set out below: FIERMERNEEIBR
Attendance
Committee Member %8 HERR
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERALE 11
Mr. An Dong (ceased on 26 May 2022) RHEEE (RS FRR-+,BEE) 171
Ms. Zhao Xiao Lian (appointed on 1 June 2022 and HNELE W_E__E A—-HERE N/A
resigned on 1 November 2022) R = g::ﬁ* A—HET) TER
Mr. Chan Lik Shan (appointed on 27 January 2023) BALLE W2 =F—RA_++tHEZD N/A
TEH
Mr. So Yin Wai BERSE 1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 27 November 2009 with written
terms of reference. As at the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and
three INEDs, namely Mr. Lyu NingJiang, Mr. Zhao Xianming,
Mr. Chan Lik Shan and Mr. So Yin Wai, and is chaired by Mr. Lyu
NingJiang.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating
relevant procedures for nomination of directors, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors. During the Year, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the composition of the Board and made

recommendations to the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience. The Board
has adopted a policy which sets out the approach to achieve and

maintain diversity on the Board (the “"Board Diversity Policy”).

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption. The Board
understands a single gender board will not be considered to have
achieved diversity. The Board has looked forward to the potential
candidates and will appoint a director of a different gender no
later than 31 December 2024. For the detailed gender ratio in the
workforce (including senior management) for the Year, please refer
to the separate environmental, social, and governance report of
the Company.
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Director Nomination Policy
The Committee shall consider, among others, the following criteria

in evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:
o Character and integrity;

° Personal attributes including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, experience and expertise that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy, and the ability
to provide insights and practical wisdom based on those
attributes;

o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member, other directorships, memberships of various
committees and significant commitments;

o For independent non-executive directors to be appointed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

o Ability to develop a good working relationship with other
Board members and contribute to the Board's working
relationship with senior management of the Company;

o Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board; and

o Any other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held and
the attendance of each member is set out below:

ERRABR
TERBEGREANETESHBEREZEGRE
EE HPaE UTRE :

. RERHEE;

o EARMN BREFATEBREFRE
BEARRBER B X E E ~ 5Kl - M~ B
RER URERZEFMEHRER R
BEREEMED

s (JHENKEETHESESSTHE -H
thEERE KREEENENBERE
EEXERMBERE ;

e WRELHRANEZENEILIFAT
EF R2E LHRAFMEEILIERES
EREEARSTRESBIL,;

s HHMEFEMETWHARYT ILIFRHE
TieEEETRAATNSHREEREN
TRRARAVEEDD ;

e EFEZILBRKEZETHRERE
EEZTERMNERAFERR, &

s BRARBEFNEMNHEMETER
J3H °

ﬂfﬁq EF?I:E_A%E%éEE ED?}Z’%E‘ZE\
HEBEREIWT

Attendance

Committee Member %5 HEER
Mr. Lyu NingJiang BEIRE 11
Mr. Zhao Xianming HEALE "
Mr. An Dong (ceased on 26 May 2022) REEE RS- ERR "+ HED 1”1
Ms. Zhao Xiao Lian (appointed on 1 June 2022 and BhERE (RZBZZFAA—HEZE N/A
resigned on 1 November 2022) TRZBZZF+—A—HED TER
Mr. Chan Lik Shan (appointed on 27 January 2023) BALEE RS- =F—R_+tHEZD N/A
AER
Mr. So Yin Wai BERLE 1/1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises all three INEDs,
namely Mr. Zhao Xianming (chairman), Mr. Chan Lik Shan and
Mr. So Yin Wai. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to supervise the internal control policies, the financial reporting
systems and procedures of the Company, to review the financial
statements and reports of the Group, and to review the terms
of engagement and scope of audit work of the external auditor.
The audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditor of the
Company, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, and
reviewed the Group's results for the year ended 31 December
2022.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, as well as the interim

BZEEG
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NEBEZEBR MBRRAANESF > B

FEBOMBHRENRS > URIBSINEZ
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CEERTEBRBRE_T-__F+°8

_-i— HIEFENEERMBRE-

BEREZECERARNBDZIIBREMES
(B8 SStNEHMERATDEE  TEE

AAEESE_E-_F#+-_8A=+—AH1t
FEZEE-
FR BEZZEeRRAEENRABEER

WEEEIER L/US’ZEF'HHEZ£¢¥”,\ o BIZ

and annual results of the Group, which, in the opinion of the Audit ZEBERA  ZEEEIZBRERGTER
Committee, were prepared in compliance with the applicable K FmM#RAIMARS
accounting standards and the Listing Rules.
During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the F£ R EBiZZ B g1 T REH PXHE
attendance of each member is set out below: HIE R EREEIER
Attendance
Committee Member %8 HERER
Mr. Zhao Xianming BEALE 2/2
Mr. An Dong (ceased on 26 May 2022) ZEEE WS- _ERR_+/HED 1”1
Ms. Zhao Xiao Lian (appointed on 1 June 2022 and BB (R_E_FE—RHEZAZ
resigned on 1 November 2022) W= 7__&+ A—R#RD 1/1
Mr. Chan Lik Shan (appointed on 27 January 2023) BALEE (R_T=F-F-+LRHEZD N/A
TEA
Mr. So Yin Wai BERKE 2/2
Corporate Governance Function TEERBAE
The Board does not have a corporate governance committee. The BEZGUWHEIZKVECXEARZEE XEA
functions that would be carried out by a corporate governance Z & & & & i B9 B AE %"%‘ A8 H A &

committee are performed by the Board as a whole and are as
follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

o'

1. FIEREBREATNEEER
ERTREFERHEEBER

R
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2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the Code Provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of our

operations with applicable laws and regulations.

During the Year, members of the Board have reviewed and
discussed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance at regular board meetings.
They have also reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors, and the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements as well as its disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. The Board has reviewed the code of conduct
applicable to employees and directors setting out the standards of
behavior that the Company expects from them and the guidelines
on how they should handle different situations in business dealings

with the Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE SET
OUT IN APPENDIX 10 TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the "Model Code”). The Company
periodically issues notices to the Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company's listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication of
announcements of results. The Company has confirmed, having
made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors have
complied with the Model Code throughout the period under

review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the accounts of the Company. Save as disclosed
on note 2 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has mechanisms to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be
reviewed annually by the Board, encouraging all directors including
independent non-executive directors to express their views in an
open manner during the full meetings of committee meetings
of the Board. While all independent non-executive directors are
also members of the board committees to enable various and
independent views on the Company’s matters. In addition, all
Directors, including INEDs, are entitled to seek further information
and documentation from the management on the matters to be
discussed at board meetings. They can also seek assistance from
the company secretary of the Company and, where necessary,
independent advice from external professional advisers at the
Company's expense. The Board considered the said mechanisms

have been operating effectively.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the

section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

The Group's external auditor provided the following services to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022:

T2 EREM AN =
AATSNERYMARREHEADRES
T H+ At ALEERANBR
ROPRECHBE RN EFRBILE
MR & ) — & o

FEENIINEZBRNBE-_T - "+
B=+—HUEFERFTEBRREH TR :

HK$'000

FHEx

Audit services ZEHRTS 1,050
Non-audit services* IEZ RS 210

b The non-audit services mainly comprised review of financial information, tax

services and financial due diligence services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted review of both design and implementation effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee

communicates any material issues to the Board.

* FRERBIZOEEHNMBER RERBTR
MHEBRMAERE
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During the Year, the Group appointed an independent third party,
Insightnetic Consultancy Limited (“ICL") to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group

through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by ICL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of ICL as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk

management systems effective and adequate.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
in 2017. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure
that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the

Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The
Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that

oversights risk management and internal audit functions.
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Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by ICL. The Group maintains a risk register to keep
track of all identified major risks of the Group. The risk register
provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and management with a
profile of its major risks and records management’s action taken to
mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually
based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon
the Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks,
if applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and alert
to those risks in their areas of responsibility so that they can take

follow-up actions in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meetings are held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensuring that risk
management forms part of the daily business operation processes
in order to align risk management with corporate goals in an

effective manner.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The internal control
mechanism includes information flow and reporting processes,
confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures, and staff

training arrangements, etc.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls and
risk management annually and further enhance the Group's internal

control and risk management systems as appropriate.
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There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit
function for the Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless,
the Directors will continue to review at least annually the need for

an internal audit function.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the
right of voting at general meetings shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and the meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board will be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Communication with Shareholders and Procedures for
Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

All published information, including all the statutory
announcements and press releases, is promptly posted on the
Group's website at www.chinawoodint.com.hk. Shareholders
can also send enquiries to the Board or the Company Secretary,
and/or proposals to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting for
shareholders’ consideration by email at cs@chinawoodint.com.hk
or directly by raising questions at the annual general meeting of

the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate

transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations.
information to its shareholders and investment pubilic.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and
interim reports, announcements and circulars. The corporate
website of the Company (www.chinawoodint.com.hk) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the

shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were no changes to the Company’s

constitutional documents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company has duly complied with the
relevant training requirement under the Listing Rules.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
hereby present their report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
5 to 20 of this annual report. Description of the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in
note 6 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and

the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 194.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has a specified dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),

under which the Board shall also take into account, inter alia,
the operating results, cash flow, financial condition and capital
requirements of the Group and the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole when proposing any dividend payout.
The Company's distribution of dividends shall also be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association of the Company as well as all

applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy allows the Board to declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to the interim and/or annual
dividends. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm
that the Company has maintained during the year under review the
amount of public float as required under the the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, WARRANTS
AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
convertible bonds during the year are set out in notes 36 and 33
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report, respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on pages 195 to 196. This summary

does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's distributable reserves comprise the share premium,
other reserves and accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2022,
the Company had no distributable reserves (2021: HK$Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 47.7% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 16.3%. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 47.6% of the
total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 16.3%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors (“ED(s)")
Mr. Lyu NingJiang

Non-executive Directors (“NED(s)")
Mr. Hu Yong Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")
Mr. Zhao Xianming
Mr. An Dong (ceased on 26 May 2022)
Ms. Zhao Xiao Lian (appointed on 1 June 2022
and resigned on 1 November 2022)
Mr. Chan Lik Shan
(appointed on 27 January 2023)
Mr. So Yin Wai

In accordance with Articles 83(3) and 84(1) of the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), Mr.
Lyu NingJiang, Mr. Hu Yong Gang and Mr. Chan Lik Shan shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") and,
being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs to be

independent as at the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 22 of this

annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the Year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, no
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is determined with reference
to the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees (including Directors), as well as the results of the Group
and the market conditions. The Group provides discretionary
bonus, medical insurance, provident fund, education subsidy and
training to its employees. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme as an incentive to eligible participants, details of

which are set out below in the section “Share Option Scheme”.
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Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 13 and 14 of the notes to the

consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company or their respective associates had registered
any short positions in the share capital of the Company and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules adopted by the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company, being 5% or more of the total issued share capital of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares:

RIZEISFRE

Percentage of the
Company's issued

Number of share capital
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interested (note 3)
Y|
g#iRE
BEREEN MESL
TERREHE 8/ #mitE Ri®E (Hrzt3)
Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited (note 1) Beneficial owner 174,961,694 51.07%
EZBHEFRAD (H:21) BnERsE
Dundee Greentech Limited (note 2) Beneficial owner 39,475,000 11.52%
Dundee Greentech Limited (¥fz£2) BnkERE
China Orient Asset Management Corporation Person having a security interest in shares 113,073,694 33.01%
FERAEEEEAT REEHEEEFETZAL
notes: M EE -

(1) These 174,961,694 (as consolidated under the Share Consolidation) shares
are registered in the name of Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited (a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) (“Sino Merchant”), the entire issued
share capital of which is owned as to 60% by Ms. Deng Shufen and 40% by
Ms. Liu Jiangyuan. Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms. Liu Jiangyuan are deemed to
be interested in all the shares and underlying shares in which Sino Merchant is
interested by virtue of the SFO. As Mr. Dai Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Deng
Shufen, he is deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares
which Ms. Deng Shufen is deemed to be interested in for the purpose of the
SFO.

(2) These 39,475,000 (as consolidated under the Share Consolidation) shares are
registered in the name of Dundee Greentech Limited (a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands), the entire issued share capital of which is held by
Mr. Liu Hailong.

(3) The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on the issued share
capital of the Company as consolidated under Share Consolidation comprising
342,572,857 shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person
(other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company” above) had
registered an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded in the

register of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme was adopted on 3 June 2016
(the “Share Option Scheme”) by the shareholders. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 3 June 2016 and will remain in force until 2 June
2026.

Eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme includes
any full-time or part-time employees, executives (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, any suppliers
of goods or services, any customers, any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support,
any shareholder of any member of the Group, any adviser or
consultant to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group and any other groups, or classes of
participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to

the development and growth of the Group.

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of the offer for grant which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Shares.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the
Company as nominal consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 21
days from the date of offer for grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by the Board
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject
to the provisions of early termination thereof. Unless otherwise
determined by the Board and stated in the offer for the grant to
a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the Share
Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised and no performance target which needs to be achieved

by a grantee before the options can be exercised.

E g

REBRESEDBERRER _Z2—REXA
— B (RERESE)) -BRESIER
HEEERNFHEMNEERSHEERT
RE R - BRESENFEHE T —
FRA= Elﬁ_?%ﬁmofﬁ’ﬂiiﬁ?fﬁxﬁzéi_
BT REHSRAZHe

/I

BRESEETHNGERSEEGRELRT
HEEFAMBRAINENZBARBES
THAS (BEAT FRTRBIULIFATE
B EUEmuRBHER EAELE
IR M S A MR FHIATRERE
FERBEAAERATNEMNRR - SEEE
AR B RASNEREFBENESFERNE
PEBEEAN  UREFUEGERT %
BHMBENEMEBZHN A ANBRMRAES
MAEEEREREROEMER NER 2 R
o

REERHEESET  ERADRUTH
BEEE ((WWREEEBHEENHE WEAEXE

BH) B PR H S B RERMMEARMDUL
MEINNEREERLENBHALESE
FHBMTFrELNE BRERAHERG T
B HE ; KRGiRMDIEE -

ARAEMEREFAMEERERABZMN
1TBTHEERE MELERENENOL
BERREERELEZELOHBAES21IBATUE
Mo IR RIEBIREENKRRNES
BETE BRI EAE R RER T LT %
FAE8EBEFEE BHES 5 TZRN
RERLEBER -BREZTERITEERNBUK
BEANEQRAIREN  BRESTEIET
MEmERET FTITEREEERETER
FRHARR BRI {TE BRI AR ABREIER
ERIRBERF

yAA CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED AR ARAF]



Report of the Directors
E5EHRS

Based on 6,481,375,000 shares in issue as at the date of adoption
of the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of options that may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme are 648,137,500 shares, being 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption. After the share
consolidation being effective on 26 June 2020, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
32,406,875 shares, representing 9.5% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2022. The maximum entitlement of
each participant shall not in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the

Company’s issued share capital from time to time.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no option was granted
under the Share Option Scheme. In addition, there was no
outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There has been no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with the Director is
or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisting
during or at the end of the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to
the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of their duty in their offices.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the convertible bonds and the share option scheme of
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 is disclosed in note 43
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in note 43
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or
non-exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing

Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the events set out on note 45 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report, the Group

has no significant events after the reporting period.

ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIETY AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

The environmental, social and governance report prepared with
the assistance of a professional third party for year 2022 will be
published separately in compliance with the requirement of the

Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND
REGULATIONS

The Company encourages its employees to understand, comply
with and keep themselves abreast of the laws, rules and regulations
applicable to their positions and the operation of the businesses
of the Group as any violation could jeopardize the integrity of
the Group. The Company has employed suitable personnel and
engaged professional advisers as and when appropriate to provide
legal advice on the applicability, existence or interpretation of any
laws, rules and regulations. The Board is not aware of any violation
of the applicable laws, rules and regulations that had a significant
impact on the business and/or operation of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group's success lies also on the support from key stakeholders,
including but not limited employees, customers, bankers, service

providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human
resources management is to reward and recognise our employees
by providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives, and opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

Customers
The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset

growth as well as long term profitability.

Bankers
To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access, the
Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers and

has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when necessary.
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Auditor

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 had been audited by McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, who will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment as auditor at the Company’s

forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE
COMPANY’S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and
“Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor’s
report contained on pages 49 to 53 of the Annual Report, the
auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) did not express an audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 because of the significance
of the matters described in the section “Basis for Disclaimer of

Opinion”.

The Board’s Response to the Disclaimer Opinion

The conditions together with other considerations forming
the opinion of the Board to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on the going concern basis is being
described in note 2 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements in a section headed “"Going Concern Assumption”.

On behalf of the board of directors of

China Wood International Holding Co., Limited
PAERZERBRARF

(Joint Provisional Liquidators appointed)

(For restructuring purposes only)

Lyu NingJiang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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To the shareholders of China Wood International Holding Co.,
Limited

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

(Joint provisional liquidators appointed for restructuring purposes only)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Wood International Holding Co., Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 194,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred a loss of HK$150,402,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022, the Group had
net current liabilities and net liabilities of HK$1,456,512,000 and
HK$1,402,852,000 respectively. The bank and other borrowings,
and provision of claims of the Group amounted to HK$846,873,000
and HK$287,924,000, respectively, as of 31 December 2022.
Furthermore, the Group recorded net operating cash outflow
for five consecutive years with the Group's total cash and bank
balances remaining at a low level of HK$4,060,000 as of 31
December 2022.

As of 31 December 2022 and up to the approval date on these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

major outstanding claims recorded by the Group (“Claims”):

(i) Other borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$784,786,000 in default (the”Defaulted Borrowings”);

(i) Bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$14,101,000
in default and demanded by a bank for repayment (the
“"Demanded Bank Loan");

(iiy  Borrowing of approximately HK$11,371,000 in default and
under a court order to repay the principal together with
penalty and accrued interest thereon (the “Claimed Loan”);

(iv)  Provision for claims of HK$200,000,000 in respect of claims
by liquidators of a fund being wound up (the “Claim

Provision”); and

(v)  Liquidated claims of approximately HK$87,924,000 in relation
to three litigations against the Group in prior years in which
the Group was ordered by various court orders to settle
during the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021, and 2022
(the "Legal Provision”).
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

Material uncertainties relating to going concern (continued)
As of the date of approval on these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not settle the amounts of the Defaulted
Borrowings, the Demanded Bank Loan, the Claimed Loan, the
Claim Provision and the Legal Provision. The Defaulted Borrowings,
the Demanded Bank Loan, the Claimed Loan and the Claim
Provision will be dealt with by the restructuring that includes
capital reorganisation, the investor's subscription, the scheme of
arrangement with creditors, and the whitewash waiver as disclosed
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The Legal
Provision will be settled by internal financial resources generated
from the Group's future operations.

The aforementioned conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which cast significant doubt regarding the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Given these circumstances,
the management of the Company has given careful consideration
to the restructuring plans, future liquidity and performance of
the Group, and the available sources of financing to determine
whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. To mitigate the Group's liquidity
pressure and improve its cashflows, management has implemented
or will adopt certain plans and measures, including ongoing
negotiation and implementation of the restructuring plans, as well

as the following:

(i) the Group will complete the pending conditions of capital

reorganization;

(i) the Group will fulfill the conditions precedent to the investor’s

subscription;

(i) the Group will fulfill the conditions precedent to the scheme

of arrangement with creditors to become effective;

(iv)  the Company will fulfill all resumption guidance and resume
trading of its shares on the Stock Exchange and the Stock
Exchange will grant the listing approval of any issuance of
new securities by the Company; and

(v the Group will continue to take proactive measures to
improve operating cash flows by controlling administrative

costs and containing capital expenditure.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

Material uncertainties relating to going concern (continued)
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the
successful realization of these plans and measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties. As a results of above multiple
uncertainties, the potential interactions of these uncertainties, and
the possible cumulative effect thereof, we are unable to form an
opinion as to whether the going concern basis of preparation is
appropriate.

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned
restructuring, it might not be able to continue to operate as a
going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial

statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an
auditor's report. However, because of the matters described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial

statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Man Sun

Audlit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07606
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat FExT FET
Revenue U =5 9 145,378 116,067
Cost of sales and services rendered $HE B A IR BYARFS (121,266) (101,651)
Gross profit EF 24,112 14,416
Other income, gains and (losses), net H AW~ e K 10
(B518) %8 3,139 (48,192)
Allowances for expected credit losses ~ FEURARTN ~ EFUA
("ECLs") on trade, loan and HEW=IETAEREES
other receivables, net 518 (TFERRE EE518))
B EFER (35,578) (2,850)
Provision for financial guarantee M TSR (1,000) (2,000)
Selling and distribution expenses $HE T ) H R 2 (981) (386)
Administrative expenses TEER (22,443) (15,762)
Other expenses HhFasz - (101,823)
Loss from operations REFRISESIE (32,751) (156,597)
Finance costs BE A 11 (113,738) (117,730)
Loss before tax PRI AIESIE 12 (146,489) (274,327)
Income tax expense FrigMpEs 15 (3,913) (233)
Loss for the year FREE (150,402) (274,560)
Other comprehensive income, Hith2mEUA > i0F&HRIE
net of tax
ltems that may be subsequently HErgEEMnEE
reclassified to profit or loss BmHIEE
Exchange difference arising on translation i E IR SN E BRI E R E R
of foreign operations 11,369 (2,760)
Other comprehensive income FREMBEHYA
for the year, net of tax Nk#iE 11,369 (2,760)
Total comprehensive FREEBALEE
income for the year (139,033) (277,320)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-F e
note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 T#ET FH7T
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEFEIEEARBE:
Owners of the Company ¥ N/NETEZZ =N (150,133) (274,550)
Non-controlling interests JEIERR (269) (10)
(150,402) (274,560)
Total comprehensive income UTEHFEEER
for the year attributable to: EHEWIALLEE
Owners of the Company KABEB A (138,035) (277,210)
Non-controlling interests JEIERG (998) (110)
(139,033) (277,320)
Loss per share SkEsia 17
Basic (HK dollar) AR (Bro) (0.44) (0.80)
Diluted (HK dollar) 58 (Bor) N/ARER N/ATE A
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At 31 December 2022
=B —Ft+=A=+—8

2022 2021
—E=-= TR —F
note HK$'000 HK$'000
o3 F#A5T FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-RRERRE 18 19,121 22,994
Right-of-use assets EREESE 19 505 1,907
Goodwill RS 20 = =
Intangible assets mILEE 21 22,434 24,351
Interest in an associate R—REBE AR N ED 22 =
Deferred tax assets IRILIRIEE B 35 5,780 6,183
Financial assets at fair value through BATEE ABT 23
profit or loss (“FVTPL") (FRAFEStAEGE)
WEMEE 12,255 12,794
60,095 68,229
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 24 14,887 70,457
Trade receivables FEURBR =X 25 68,591 33,200
Loan receivable W E R 26 - =
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE B R EHM 27
other receivables FEW R IR 48,463 56,400
Restricted bank balances Z IR HIIRITASER 28 59 -
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITAER 28 4,060 2,539
136,060 162,596
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iRa MBI

At 31 December 2022
RIZ2ZZHF+ZHA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C i
note HK$'000 HK$'000
i z# F#ET TFET
Current liabilities REaE

Trade payables FEATBRRR 29 57,621 96,675
Other payables and accruals HAME N RIE K ET =B 30 647,535 556,225
Bank and other borrowings T REMEE 31 846,873 797,978
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 785 1,362
Financial guarantee SR 34 36,000 35,000
Tax payable FEATTRIA 3,758 -
1,592,572 1,487,240
Net current liabilities e & EREE (1,456,512) (1,324,644)
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRSERE (1,396,417) (1,256,415)

Non-current liabilities ERBHEE
Lease liabilities HEaR 32 209 1,028
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEEE 35 6,226 6,376
6,435 7,404
NET LIABILITIES =R e (1,402,852) (1,263,819)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iRa M IEIRRR

At 31 December 2022
K2 _H+"HB=+—H

2022 2021
-z BT
note HK$'000 HK$'000
o2 F#A5T FAET
Capital and reserves BERREE
Equity attributable to owners KRBER NEE#EED
of the Company

Share capital feas 36 68,515 68,515
Reserves HHE (1,462,535) (1,324,500)
(1,394,020) (1,255,985)
Non-controlling interests JEIERR M (8,832) (7,834)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B4l (1,402,852) (1,263,819)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and signed BHEZER_Z=F=AZ+/N\Hilt

on its behalf by: oW TNINEEAAEE !
Lyu NingJiang Hu YongGang
BT #A K B
Chairman and Executive Director Non-executive Director
FERNITESE FEHITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mOEmER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EREREAES
Foreign
currency Non-
Share Share Capital translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
e

ks RYEE REEE  ERGE  BHEH i REm  RRAR
(note 37(3)) (note 37(b))  (note 37(c))
WE3re)  (WE3ne) (W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tén TR T TR TAn Tin TEn

At 1 January 2021 RZE_-&-A-H 68,515 1,059,713 14,593 (8,021)  (2,113,575) (978,775) (7.724) (986,499)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (274550)  (274,550) (10)  (274,560)
Other comprehensive income HttZ2ANA - - - (2,660) S (2,660) (100) (2,760)
Total comprehensive income FREZEUAEE

for the year - - - (2,660) (274,550) 277,210) (110) (277,320)
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ-%+ZA=1+-H

1 January 2022 kZE__F-F—-H 68,515 1,059,713 14,593 (10,681) (2,388,125 (1,255,985) (7.834)  (1,263819)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (150,133)  (150,133) 269 (150402
Other comprehensive income He2ERA 5 = S 12,098 S 12,098 729) 11,369
Total comprehensive income ERRERALE

for the year - - - 12,098 (150,133) (138,035) (998) (139,033)
At 31 December 2022 WZ2ZZ§+-A=+-H 68,515 1,059,713 14,593 147 (2,538,258 (1,394,020) 6,832 (1,402,852
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv'F IE@/}ILE‘IEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
== TR —F
note HK$'000 HK$'000
Vg2 F#E5T FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EEFBFRSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax PRI A RS 18 (146,489) (274,327
Adjustments for: RUTEIEFE
Finance costs RRE B A 113,738 117,730
Interest income FIE WA (19) (324)
Depreciation on property, M ME kR EITE
plant and equipment 8,901 5,464
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRAEESEITE 939 1,168
Write-off of items of property, M R e sk R 1E B
plant and equipment - 35
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  tHEY BB K&
equipment, net RES 1548 1,822 2,177
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases RIFTAEMEBE (m) 23 (4)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE - 244
Provision for financial guarantee TSI (R AL 1,000 2,000
Provision for claims REEFHEEE = 93,949
Allowances for ECLs on trade and other  FEURBR 3k Kz ELMth FE U =R 18
receivables, net YERRE B 1R R 538 35,578 2,850
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial BN ESFABEN
assets at FVTPL THMEERLTE
() /#5318 (975) 46,362
Impairment of intangible assets mILEERE = 7,462
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

|v'F EE%/)ILE‘IEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

2022 2021
== =TS
note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 F#A57T TFAET
Operating profit before working EEETHFAINLE
capital changes T ) 14,518 4,786
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL 8 55,570 (63,960)
Increase in trade receivables & U BR SR IS 0 (35,391) (33,039)
Increase in deposits, e TR RIEREAM
prepayments and other receivables FEWGRRIEIE NI (27,633) (15,198)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FETBRER CRIZL) /1810 (39,054) 93,003
(Decrease)/increase in other HMhE I mIE R Est
payables and accruals FRIE GRt/L) /1890 (6,154) 18,528
Cash (used in)/generated from KRS () FriBIR%
operations (38,144) 4,120
Bank interest paid and bank charges ENRTHERRITFES (418) (75)
Interest element of lease rental paid EFNEERETHRSE D (136) (226)
Income taxes paid BFREIR (225) (217)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &5 (FRA) /FriT
operating activities NEBEE (38,923) 3,602
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REGZHFRSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, BEVE -BMERRE
plant and equipment (11,036) (18,173)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BEREZEN
plant and equipment PRiSRIR 2,402 533
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFESF AEBTR
assets at FVTPL EREEMMSMIE - 5,000
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank ZIRHISRITASER
balances (gm) R (59) 1,467
Interest received BUFHIE 19 324
Net cash used in investing activities 2 & ZEIFFARE/FEE (8,674) (10,849)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv-F Iﬁﬁllllgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
== BT —F
note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat FExT TFET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEEFRFRENE
ACTIVITIES
Raising of new bank and SHMBTREMES
other borrowings 97,648 5,531
Repayment of bank and BERITRAMES
other borrowings (43,996) =
Capital element of lease rental paid BNHEEHRSMNELRILD (916) (1,737)
Net cash generated from REEENFRGIRE B8R
financing activities 52,736 3,794
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERFEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS W IPER 5,139 (3,453)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H—BA—HBHNRER
AT 1 JANUARY HE%EY 2,539 3,332
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEF] REFN R B
changes (3,618) 2,660
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B+ZB=+—HHHRE
AT 31 DECEMBER RIREZ{EY 4,060 2,539
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HERRELZEMDIR
EQUIVALENTS
Cach and bank balances B& KMIR1T4E R 28 4,060 2,539
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

irE R ARMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

(i) General information

China Wood International Holding Co., Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.
During the reporting period, the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong is located at 1601, 16/
F, Sun House, 90 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
the Group is principally engaged in (i) wood-related
business, including the processing and distribution
of furniture wood, and the manufacturing and sales
of antique-style wood furniture and other wooden

products; and (i) car rental business in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that Sino Merchant Car Rental
Limited (“Sino Merchant”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"), is the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company; Ms. Deng
Shufen and Ms. Liu Jiangyuan, the shareholders of Sino
Merchant, are the ultimate controlling parties of the

Company.

(i) Appointment of the joint provisional liquidators

for restructuring purposes only

Having explored different options to restructure
the debts of the Company, the Board decided to
implement a management led restructuring under
a court-supervised provisional liquidation regime
pursuant to the laws of the Cayman Islands, commonly
known as a “light touch” provisional liquidation,
which provides a statutory moratorium prohibiting the
commencement or continuance of any proceedings
against the Company without the leave of the Grand
Court of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Court”) in

the Cayman Islands.

1.

NEIEM

(i)

(ii)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Appointment of the joint provisional liquidators
for restructuring purposes only (continued)

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on 2
February 2021, Osman Mohammed Arab and Lai Wing
Lun at RSM Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited,
and Martin Nicholas John Trott of R&H Restructuring
(Cayman) Ltd., were appointed as joint provisional
liquidators (“JPLs”) of the Company (for restructuring
purposes) on a light touch basis for restructuring
purposes was presented and filed with the Cayman

Court by the Company.

The application for the appointment of JPLs (the
"JPL Application”) was heard before the Cayman
Court on 2 February 2021 (Cayman Islands time).
The Cayman Court made the orders as sought by the
Company under the JPL Application, inter alia, Osman
Mohammed Arab and Lai Wing Lun of RSM Corporate
Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, and Martin Nicholas
John Trott of R&H Restructuring (Cayman) Ltd., were
appointed as JPLs of the Company on a light touch
basis for restructuring purposes. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 2 February
2021 and 5 February 2021 for details.

Restructuring

On 28 January 2022, the Company's solicitors has
taken out an ex parte originating summons with the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Hong Kong Court”) for the hearing on
8 February 2022 of an application by the Company for
an order to convene a meeting of the creditors (the
“Scheme Meeting”) of the Company to consider and,
if thought fit, approve, with or without modification,
a scheme of arrangement (the “Scheme”) proposed
by the Company, pursuant to section 670 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). By an order of the
Hong Kong Court, the Scheme Meeting was convened
on 11 March 2022.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED HAEIBEIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

(iii) Restructuring (continued)

On 16 February 2022 (after trading hours), the
Company, the JPLs, the investor and Mr. Lyu
NingJiang, the executive director, chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company, have entered into
the conditional restructuring agreement, pursuant to
which the Company will carry out the Restructuring
Transactions involving (i) the Capital Reorganisation; (ii)
the Investor’s Subscription; and (iii) the Scheme. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2022 for details of the Restructuring Agreement
and the Restructuring Transactions.

At the Scheme Meeting convened and held on 11
March 2022, the Scheme was approved by the requisite
statutory majorities of the creditors. On 22 March
2022, the Company’s solicitors received a letter from
the Hong Kong Court informing that Mr. Justice Harris
will make an order to sanction the Scheme without
modification. The sealed sanction order was delivered
to the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong for
registration on 26 April 2022.

As announced in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 March 2022 and the circular in relation to
the Restructuring Transactions and the Whitewash
Waiver dated 5 August 2022, the Funding Agreement
dated 31 December 2020 was entered into between
the Company as the borrower and the investor as
the lender to provide the funding for the Company
to continue and further develop its business. On 17
October 2022, the Funding Agreement, the terms
and funding already provided and to be provided
thereunder, have been sanctioned by the Cayman
Court.

All the proposed resolutions in relation to the Capital
Reorganisation, the Investor's Subscription, the Scheme,
and the Whitewash Waiver were duly passed by the
Shareholders or the Independent Shareholders (as the
case may be) at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 30 August 2022, and the Executive Director of
the Corporate Finance Department of Securities and
Futures Commission has granted the Whitewash Waiver
on 22 August 2022 subject to, among other matters, no
acquisition or disposal of voting rights being made by
the investor and its concert parties between the date
of the announcement of the Investor’s Subscription and
the completion of the Investor's Subscription. Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 5 August
2022 and the announcement of the Company dated 30
August 2022 for details.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1.

(iii) Restructuring (continued)
The legal adviser of the Company as to Cayman
Islands law is preparing the petition to be made to
the Cayman Court for an order confirming the Capital

Reorganisation.

The Capital Reorganisation, the Investor's Subscription,
and the Scheme are conditional upon the satisfaction
of the conditions set out in the paragraphs headed
“Conditions for Capital Reorganisation”, “Conditions of
the Investor's Subscription” and “Conditions precedent
to the Scheme” in the circular of the Company dated
5 August 2022. Please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 5 August 2022 for details.

(iv) Suspension of trading of the shares

The Board has appointed a corporation licensed
to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
as the financial adviser to the Company on matters
relating to the resumption of trading in the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange. The Company
is working closely with its professional advisers and
taking appropriate steps to fulfill the conditions in
the Resumption Guidance as stated in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 October 2021 and will
update the shareholders and potential investors of the
Company on, among others, the progress as and when
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial

statements.

Going concern assumption

The Group incurred a loss of HK$150,402,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022,
the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
HK$1,456,512,000 and HK$1,402,852,000 respectively. The
bank and other borrowings, and provision of claims of the
Group amounted to HK$846,873,000 and HK$287,924,000,
respectively, as of 31 December 2022. Furthermore, the
Group recorded net operating cash outflow for the year
ended 31 December 2022 with the Group's total cash and
bank balances remaining at a low level of HK$4,060,000 as of
31 December 2022.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern assumption (continued)

As of 31 December 2022 and up to the approval date on
these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following major outstanding claims recorded by the Group

(“Claims”):

(i) ~ Other borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$784,786,000 in default (the “Defaulted Borrowings");

(i) Bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$14,101,000 in default and demanded by a bank or
repayment (the “Demanded Bank Loan");

(i)  Borrowing of approximately HK$11,371,000 in default
and under a court order to repay the principal together
with penalty and accrued interest thereon (the

"Claimed Loan");

(iv)  Provision for claims of HK$200,000,000 in respect of
claims by liquidators of a fund being wound up (the
“Claim Provision”); and

(v)  Liquidated claims of approximately HK$87,924,000 in
relation to three litigations against the Group in prior
years in which the Group was ordered by various court
orders to settle during the years ended 31 December
2020, 2021, and 2022 (the “Legal Provision”).

As of the date of approval on these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not settle the amounts of the
Defaulted Borrowings, the Demanded Bank Loan, the
Claimed Loan, the Claim Provision and the Legal Provision.
The Defaulted Borrowings, the Demanded Bank Loan, the
Claimed Loan and the Claim Provision will be dealt with by
the Restructuring that includes Capital Reorganisation, the
Investor’s Subscription, the Scheme, and the Whitewash
Waiver as disclosed in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Legal Provision will be settled by internal
financial resources generated from the Group’s future

operations.

RANEZE @

FESE RS (B
NIEIZHF+A=+—HBKEE#Z
LREMBRERMAERS AEEFIU
TEAKREEZERR (BHR)) !

)y BEHZEMEELIT784,786,000
Bt (MEYEE)) ;

(i) BENOUZERTERERZIR
TEE414,101,00058 7T (MERSER
1T§7FAJ> b

(il BRNLIFELRESEREE
rEEROSREANBEZEE
#911,371,000%8 T (REREE)) ;

vy BRAESBESZBEBARER
FEEE 7 REZHREE200,000,00078 7T
(TREZEME ) , &

v, BEZEZEF - TE—FRZ
v__E-I- B=+—HLEE>
AEEMBEFEHHAEEN
_Tluﬁ"‘ EZEERBELSERE

ZIBAEE{E£4787,924,00078 7T
(rfﬁﬁéfﬁj)O

BEMEZSREMBREREE A&
B kEBENBE -EXBITER
REGE RERBRIRERBTR-
BENEE - EXBTER - REREER
RERBERBEEMR (BRFESHUBR
%ﬁﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ SAEHE - REENBSE
CEHBIRB R ER ) BRIE SRR BB R
LLK%@%XM &P EE YA BB RA 75
TRAER

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED HAEIBEIERERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'R

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

s

2.

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern assumption (continued)

The aforementioned conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which cast significant doubts regarding
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Given
these circumstances, the management of the Company has
given careful consideration to the restructuring plans, future
liquidity and performance of the Group, and the available
sources of financing to determine whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. To mitigate the Group's liquidity pressure and
improve its cashflows, management has implemented or
will adopt certain plans and measures, including ongoing
negotiation and implementation of the restructuring plans, as

well as the following:

(i) the Group will complete the pending conditions of
Capital Reorganisation;

(i)  the Group will fulfill the conditions precedent to the
Investor's Subscription;

(iii)  the Group will fulfill the conditions precedent to the
Scheme to become effective;

(iv) the Company will fulfill all resumption guidance and
resume trading of its shares on the Stock Exchange and
the Stock Exchange will grant the listing approval of any

issuance of new securities by the Company; and

(v)  the Group will continue to take proactive measures
to improve operating cash flow by controlling

administrative costs and containing capital expenditure.

Management has prepared cash flow projections that cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2022. The directors are of the opinion that, after considering
the abovementioned restructuring plans, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within twelve months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.

Going concern assumption (continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements, to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3.

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June

2021
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020
Amendments to Accounting Merger Accounting for Common
Guideline 5 Control Combinations

The Group did not change its accounting policies or
make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting

the abovementioned amendments.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3.

(continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective

The Group has not early applied new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation that

have been issued but are not yet effective for the

financial year beginning on 1 January 2022. These new

standards, amendments to standards and interpretation

include the following which may be relevant to the

Group.

R FE] B BTN E BRI TS
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Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RLAF B EAS Z 12 R YA Y
TR EX

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

SR G ERE 1B BB EARHIIER

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

SR G ERE 1B WS RHENIEREEE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 —
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BEARAGHENF IR AREBMBREENBEHLSH2RET—F5t
HERAYI EE

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates

EAGHERESRET —FHENER

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction

ERAGHENBI2RE - EE-—XFELENBEERBERRANE
FEMRIA

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

ERVBREERB1665ETT - ERELNAERRE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BEARAMBRESERFI0RREBGSHERF28RE] —REEHH
BERANEEAB ZAZEEHERLA

Hong Kong Interpretat|on 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

BHEBRESES CTZF) UHHRRZ25]—
BERNZERERZNE

&=

AHBHERENK

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies, such as certain financial

instruments that are measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that

significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation

reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling shareholders even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

4.

FTETHHE®
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BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)
Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed

to the owners of the Company.

(b) Separate financial statements
In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition—
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods
in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their

acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

4.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(c) Business combination and goodwill (continued)
The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the

acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment
at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

78

(d)

Associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of

losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group's entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the

retained interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group

and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the

Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses

are also eliminated unless the transaction provides

evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of associates have been changed

where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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(continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates

when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the

Company'’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

(continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation (continued)

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange

fluctuation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(f)  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss

during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated at the rates sufficient to
write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The

principal annual rates are as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33.33%
office equipment
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the
term of the lease or 25%
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective

basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of

the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis

over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using

the effective interest method.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(g) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by Beijing Tu An Car Rental Services Limited,
which does not have recent third-party financing,
and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

irE R ARMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to

finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Vehicle rental business licence and licence plates are
accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and are not amortised. They are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

(i) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

() Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

irE R ARMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group's entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(k) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

()  Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

irE R ARMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()  Financial assets (continued)
Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified
under: amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the

effective interest method.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other
income.

(m) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables (continued)
Receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

(o) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'R

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the

facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the
ECLs model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
the HKFRS15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(9) Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and

recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

(r)  Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(s) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(t) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

irE R ARMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue from the sale of materials is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the wholesale’s specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the wholesaler as this represents
the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

Revenue from public relation and other financing
services is recognised when the services are performed
to the satisfaction of the customers, which is evidenced
when the end products created by these services are
delivered to the satisfaction of the customers. Revenue

is recognised at a point in time.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(u) Employee benefits
(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.

(v) Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

(w) Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grants will be
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'R

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

4.

FTETHHE®

(w)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BT #ERS (48
ER B RERZHEENMBER
1) s 55 [ 42 1 B0 5 B #5 4R B i A)
WeER (M % B R AER A BOBUF
RG> 75 B H Bl A% BT B A HA
PRI A FESD ©

|
Fﬁ S 743 RV AR AR TR SRR SE AR TR BY

BNERFE IR IBT IR F RN A
F et & o FEERM i A B B 2k R PR
FESRRY A A E > EERREF
TEEEHMEERRRB AR
AR XIER MBS 8 X
BHARMKAANRMIESR -
FEBENNPREERE BN
BREMARERTHHEE LER
TR E -

BIERBERBGEEMBRRTEA
EREaENREEZRFEAERE
AR BF BB IRERME 2
BIRYZRRMESD o PR A IEERAR B By
ﬁ#ﬁ—%ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁiﬁﬁ
af| EENESERYE
ﬁ&#% %@%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%
HAMNEERBRNNERREF
B> A BERECRIRIEMRIREE - W'Y
RMEEZERETEBENELBR
\REBRRRaNOATEES
BHOXZPHEMEERER
(MEHBGHEBERIN D 0
B AT ERBRTFEERER

T CFFR 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(x) Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'R

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

(y)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition

exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating
unit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(y) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit and
then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.

(z) Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
trade receivables, loan receivables, lease receivables,
as well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount
of ECLs is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables, loan receivables and other receivables. The
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECLs when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However,
if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial

instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lﬁF

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECLs represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
In contrast, 12-month ECLs
represents the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected

a financial instrument.

to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group's debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group's core
operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

(z) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credlit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'R

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credlit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

102

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credlit risk (continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

J when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

J information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Company
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED HAEIBEIERERAT

TRMEERNE (@
FEREREEEN (&)

MY BERFREOMS  ZEE K
7 BRI AR — 5 B9 B ERAR
mrlE R T RBEF G ETHES
Y= W%ﬁ%%ﬁ@@%%
BREGHIIaFES EEoRE
ZLE K%HA%%%E%
BABNRE R ES -

FEREMNEZERUANEER
RESREEMNBRENAN
M WEFTRE (WBEE) UHER
REEHNERAHMAFEE
R BRFRE IR0

BRESE
AEBRBUTBERAANEBEE
EBREEERMSERENS
ot DERBELERKRANS
DU R ] — B R 1 Z FE WRRIE —
fig AR (E]

s XRNPHFERVBEE, N

o AMELEHEEBIIEKR
ZENBETR BB ATKA
fEERA (BREEERE 2
BPER P REEERFAE
ZAEAIRIR &) ©

TREXD AEBRBEE
FEE A HRBIB0R K Bl &8 &
EEN BEFERBEGERE
EENBENZERERNENR
EBEDBARERR-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lﬁF

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

*  The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

104

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group's understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant

forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECLs estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

(aa)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECLs (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECLs are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which

simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount

through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ab) Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at the
end of the reporting period are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have
a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered

to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)  Critical judgements in applying accounting

policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,

the directors have made the following judgements

that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements

(apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt

with below).

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends upon the successful
outcomes of the Group's plans and measures to
strengthen its capital base and liquidity. Details
are explained in note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(z), ECLs are measured as
an allowance equal to 12-month ECLs for stage
1 assets, or lifetime ECLs for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable

and supportable forward-looking information.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

(a) Income taxes
The Company is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is

made.

During the year, income tax expense of
HK$3,913,000 (2021: HK$233,000) was charged
to profit or loss based on the estimated profit
from the Group's operations.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and right-of-use assets are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an
asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect

the net present value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets were HK$19,121,000 (2021:
HK$22,994,000), HK$505,000 (2021: HK$1,907,000)
and HK$22,434,000 (2021: HK$24,351,000),
respectively.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(c)  Impairment of trade receivables and other

receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECLs on trade
receivables and other receivables based on
the credit risk of trade receivables and other
receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECLs model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstances, a material

impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was HK$68,591,000 (after
deduction of accumulated allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$833,772,000 (2021: HK$33,200,000
(after deduction of accumulated allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$834,118,000)); the carrying
amount of other receivables was HK$12,114,000
(after deducting accumulated allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$125,063,000) (2021:
HK$47,899,000 (after deducting accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$89,485,000)).
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL that are not traded in
an active market. In determining the fair value,
the valuer has utilised a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each reporting
date. Valuation techniques used include the use
or comparable recent arm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
techniques commonly used by other market
participants. Changes in assumptions on the
valuation techniques could affect the reported fair
values of these consolidated financial assets. The
financial assets at FVTPL have been valued using

various approaches.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of financial assets at FVTPL was HK$12,255,000
(2021: HK$12,794,000).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
inventory ageing analysis at the end of the
reporting period in order to identify slow moving
inventory items. Management estimates the net
realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest market prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group carries out an
inventory review on a product by product basis
at the end of the reporting period and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is
estimated to be below the cost.

No allowance for inventories were charged for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
The carrying amount of inventories, being
wood products, as at 31 December 2022 was
HK$14,887,000 (2021: HK$70,457,000).

Provision for claims

When accounting for provision for claims on
litigation, the Group has taken internal and
external advice in considering known claims and
actions made by or against the Group. It carefully
assesses the likelihood of success of a claim or
action. Appropriate provisions are made for claims
or actions against the Group on the basis of
likely outcome, but provisions are made for those
which in the view of management are unlikely to
succeed.

In making management’s judgement, the Group
assessed the Group’s liability and obligations
on a case by case basis. Provision on possible
obligations, if appropriate, are made based on
management’s best estimates and judgements.
As at 31 December 2022, provision for claims as
included in other payables and accruals amounted
to HK$287,924,000 (2021: HK$295,437,000), no
additional provision was made during the year
(2021: HK$93,949,000).
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6.

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity

risk. The Group's overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as some of its transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in the currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group’s entities such as HK$, United
Status dollars (“US$"”) and Renminbi (“RMB").

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

The directors of the Group are of the opinion that
the US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of
movements in exchange rates between US$ and HK$
to be insignificant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
is performed on the movements in exchange rates
between US$ and HKS.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed on the
Group's financial assets and liabilities denominated in
RMB as the directors of the Group are of opinion that
they are not material to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument, leading
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables
and loan receivable) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and other financial
institution, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for

which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in notes 6(d) and 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(i) Trade receivables
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk in
certain individual customers. The Group seeks to
minimise its risk by dealing with counterparties

which have good credit history.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (continued)

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer's past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing or could be longer under
certain circumstances. Normally, the Group does

not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different

customer bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. RBHERAMBEE @
(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERR @&
(i) Trade receivables (continued) (i) EWER (48)
The following table provides information about TRV EEER T
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for FR_E_—F+_A
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 and —+—HEERRKOX
2021: FEUS BR TR TE HA = B F5 18 4E
B
2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHAESHELEEE IREAEE BESiE R
% HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E5T FET
Not yet due =) A< 380 HA N/AREHR 52,176 =
Within 90 days past due #IHA90K /Y 3% 17,025 610
Over 180 days past due #iH5180K M 100% 76 76
Over 1 year 1E E 100% 833,086 833,086
902,363 833,772
2021
BT —4F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHARSIREL = IRE4EE B 1R RS
% HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT
Not yet due 5] R EA s 33,244 139
Within 90 days past due #i#A90K R 10% 106 1
Over 1 year 1EL E 100% 833,968 833,968
867,318 834,118
* Represents amount is less than 1. * BREDRT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group's view
of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the trade receivables.

Loan receivables

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
lent the loan with face value of US$2,000,000
(2021: US$2,000,000) (equivalent to
approximately HK$15,629,000) to an independent
third party.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approval and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken for the recoverable amount. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual’s loan receivables at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment loss is made for irrecoverable
amounts. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
loan receivable was secured by (i) the pledge of
an aircraft leased to the borrower by a company
wholly owned by the borrower’s sole director; and
(i) 49% equity interests of the borrower.
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6.

118

(b)

(ii)

e UEE

2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HHBRAMEIR @
Credit risk (continued) (b) EERKE (@&
Loan receivable (continued) (i) EWE (48
The following table provides information about TRV EEER T
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for FR_E_—F+_A
loan receivable as at 31 December 2022 and =+—HHEERREKO R
2021: FE U & TR TR HAE B 5 18 18R
Bl
2022
k- k.. 2
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FERARSIRELE IRE4RE SRS
% HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T F#T
Over 1 year 1E E 100% 15,629 15,629
2021
=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
SEEE) ST S s ARMEAE(E g
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FAET
Over 1 year 1= E 100% 15,629 15,629
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(iii)

Other receivables

Other receivables included consideration
receivable in relation to the disposal of an unlisted
equity fund in 2018; receivables in relation
to the acquired convertible bond; and other
miscellaneous receivables.

For the consideration receivable in relation to
the disposal of an investment of HK$82,041,000
in 2018, the ECLs allowance for the outstanding
amount, being payment due and in default in
2018, was recognised in full during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The management has
reassessed the ECLs of this receivable, and has
not made any reversal on the allowance for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

For the receivables in relation to an acquired
convertible bond of the original maturity date
being 7 April 2020, it was reclassified from
financial assets designated at FVTPL to other
receivables during the year ended 31 December
2021. The management assessed the ECLs
as of 31 December 2021 and concluded that
no allowance for ECLs was necessary for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as the Group
received a partial settlement and has agreed
to extend the settlement date to 7 April 2022.
Following the default in settlement on 7 April
2022, the management assessed the ECLs as
of 31 December 2022 and concluded that full
allowance for ECLs of the outstanding amount of
HK$33,978,000 was necessary for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

(b) Credit risk (continued)
(iii)  Other receivables (continued)

For other miscellaneous receivables, the expected
loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Such forward-looking
information is used by management of the
Group to assess both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.
In determining the ECLs of the Group's other
receivables, the management assessed the
expected losses individually by estimation based
on historical credit loss experience, general
economic conditions of the relevant industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date. Based on the
result of the foregoing, additional impairment
loss of HK$1,600,000 (2021: HK$1,830,000) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BATEER

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iii)

Other receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
other receivables which has significant increase in

2

B2 @

(b) EEER (&

(i) BRtERFE (&)
TREJFEBEE R R
OkfEERREAEEME
fth & W R IR TR RS B R 18

the credit risk: el =
2022
k-t - 2

Gross
Expected loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
FRRARSIALEEE IREAE E51R8E
Internal credit rating PSR {S E: 4R % HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT FET
Stage 1 PR 43 21,158 9,044
Stage 2 FTRE 100 33,978 33,978
Stage 3 FE=PEER 100 82,041 82,041
137,177 125,063

2021

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEARSIRLE R IREARE BRRE
Internal credit rating WEB1E BT AR % HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7T FHET
Stage 1 F—IEE 13 55,343 7,444
Stage 2 FETRE - - -
Stage 3 "k_ﬁ E% 100 82,041 82,041
137,384 89,485
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BMEERER @

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERK @)
(iii)  Other receivables (continued) (i) EmERIE (&)
Movement in the allowance for trade receivables, B#HEM A2 2 EWER
loan receivables and other receivables measured o FEWE B B A R W
at amortised cost: TE > By E)
Trade
receivables
Other receivables FEIRERER
i e Loan  Simplified
General agproach receivables  approach
e b
Lifetime Lifetime
12-month Lifetime  ECLs Credit  ECLs Credit Lifetime
ECLs ECLs impaired impaired ECLs Total
2078 2HEN

EREN MW EASHE  EAGE  2mEN
EAGA  RABHE EAEE  EAEE  £ASH a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAn  TEx  FAn  TER  FAm  TEn

At 1 January 2021 RZB_—E—-RA—H 5,614 - 82,041 15,629 832,873 936,157
Provision for ECLs BHREEHEERE 1,830 = = = 1,020 2,850
Exchange difference ERER - - - - 225 225
At31December 2021 and ~ RIEZ—%
1 January 2022 +ZA=+-Bk

“Z-"E-—f-f 7,444 - 82,041 15,629 834,118 939,232
Provision for ECLs BEE g@ﬁ? ped 1,600 33978 = = = 35,578
Exchange difference ERER - - - - (346) (346)

At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ&#+ZA=+-H 9,044 33,978 82,041 15,629 833,772 974,464
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(iv)

Financial guarantee
As at 31 December 2022, the management of
the Group has provided a corporate guarantee
in respect of a loan facility granted to an
associate of the Group up to an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$204,960,000. At
the end of the reporting period, the directors
have performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that there has been significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly,
the loss allowance for financial guarantee issued
by the Group is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs (credit impaired). As at 31
December 2022, the loss allowance in respect
of the financial guarantee of approximately
HK$36,000,000 (2021: HK$35,000,000) was made
in accordance with ECLs model under HKFRS 9.
Additional allowance for ECLs of approximately
HK$1,000,000 was recognised during the year
(2021: HK$2,000,000).

guarantee contract and quantitative disclosures

Details of the financial

are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
(v)  Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial asset and the exposure to
credit risk for the financial guarantee.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2022

RA %5 LB

(b) 1l=l Eﬂpﬁ (m%)

v)

RABERF B

TRETERAEHREE
HRNEEERRRARR
(EZ2ERBHRER FRIEF
HthSH I BANMHBD
MAEHZNNERTER)
URBE+ZA=1+—HK
FREBRDEITR

FRESNESERTHEER

REERNEERNEER
o

R-E__F+°"HA=+—

BB R KR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{E B 78
EEEH 2HFEEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
Bl BEIRE 2 BZRE N[ et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x T#x T#RT T#RT T#RT
Trade receivables* e AR 7 - - - 902,363 902,363
Loan receivables Fguﬁlféfﬂ - - 15,629 - 15,629
Other receivables HAnpE ks 21,158 33,978 82,041 - 137,177
Financial guarantee R = = 169,794 = 169,794
21,158 33,978 267,464 902,363 1,224,963

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2021

KB —F+F=4—

BB R A&
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 7 FaHA
EEBE 2HEREEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 apgroach Total
#—ﬁ & kﬁ:ﬁ & kﬁ*ﬁ & (s At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET THET
Trade receivables* PRI BR - - - 867,318 867,318
Loan receivables FEWERR - - 15,629 - 15,629
Other receivables HihfE W zhE 55,343 - 82,041 = 137,384
Financial guarantee R - - 169,794 - 169,794
55,343 - 267,464 867,318 1,190,125

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information on the expected credit
losses is disclosed in note 6 (b)(i) and note 25. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group has interest-bearing assets and liabilities
in relation to loan receivable, bank balances, other
payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities, details
of which are disclosed in notes 26, 28, 30 and 31
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group’'s bank and other borrowings, loan
receivables, lease liabilities and other payables bear
interest at fixed rates and therefore are subject to fair

value interest rate risks.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest-rate risk
mainly arises from the fluctuation of interest rate on
bank balances. These bank balances bear interests
at variable rates that varied with the then prevailing

market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest-rate risk has not
been presented as the reasonably possible changes in
market interest rate will not have significant impact on

the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.
(d) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the Group breached certain covenant clauses
in bank and other borrowings agreements under
which the Group has defaulted in repayment of bank
and other borrowings to lenders. As a result, as at
31 December 2022, bank and other borrowings of
HK$14,101,000 and HK$767,785,000 respectively
(2021: HK$15,306,000 and HK$771,241,000
respectively) is subject to an early repayment option
exercisable by the lenders. Such bank and other
borrowings are classified as current liabilities as at
31 December 2022 and 2021. As the date on these
consolidated financial statements, the lenders have
not requested for the early repayment of the bank and
other borrowings.

126 CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED AR ARAF]

HERRERE @

(d)

TRENE & B
FEEBRAERERERKRRA
HRBESTE BEREFED
REFH wEEARRAR
BSHE

REEZZZFERZIZZ—F
+-B=+—HLEE - ~&EH
ERBTREMEERZNET
RWHE G Bt ZREBTEBER
ANEERRITREMEESEHIR
BH AL WZEZ-F+°A4
—+—H IRTKEMEEDH
14,101,000 75 K 767,785,000
7T (ZE=—4% : ©515,306,000
HITKR771,241,00087T) AR E
MATEERIRFEREER
FiReZERITRAEMMEERZ
e
—t+—HOoEARHEB -NEK
REMBREEH ERALE
y*ﬁi ﬁf@?‘?&ﬂﬂﬂfaﬁ"



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'R

SHFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

s

6.

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

R FRMIEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,

the maturity

analyses based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities are as

follows:

6. RMAFEREMK

(d)

SEIR (@
/}lL@JﬁﬁHB (“)

B=+—H ERKXEEFETE
TMEBESORMBEREREN

AW

On demand Total
orless than Between1 Between 2 undiscounted  Carrying
1year and 2years and5years  cash flow value
BERY RIHR
DRE 1526 2E5F RENENRT fREfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT FERT
At 31 December 2022 At <
+ZA=+-H
Trade payables PR 57,621 - - 57,621 57,621
Other payables and accruals  ELFE(T FIE K
st &R 647,535 - - 647,535 647,535
Bank and other borrowings  $817 K EA
(note) EE (D) 874,504 - - 874,504 846,873
Lease liabilities HERR 839 211 - 1,050 994
Financial guarantee IR 36,000 - - 36,000 36,000
At 31 December 2021 R_B_—F
+ZA=+—H
Trade payables FE(TERN 96,675 = = 96,675 96,675
Other payables and accruals  ELFE(T FIE K
Bt &R 556,225 - - 556,225 556,225
Bank and other borrowings ~ $R{7 K EAth
(note) && () 821,223 - 821,223 797,978
Lease liabilities HEar 1,522 1,090 = 2,612 2,390
Financial guarantee IR 35,000 - - 35,000 35,000
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in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MBREEERE @

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d)

note:

Included in the above bank and other borrowings of the Group was
a term loan with a carrying amount of approximately HK$14,101,000
(2021: HK$15,306,000), which contained a repayment on demand
clause giving the bank the right to call in the loan at any time.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the
contractual undiscounted payments of such loan of the Group in the
amount of approximately HK$14,101,000 (2021: HK$15,306,000) were

classified as “on demand”.

The bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments were classified as “on demand or
less than 1 year”. The amount which included interest payments of
approximately HK$17,697,000 (2021: HK$19,209,000) recognised in

other payables was computed using contractual rates.

uu@]ﬁﬁﬂl‘ (&)
Hiat

IREEX14,101,0008 T (CE - —4% :
15,306,00078 7T) B EHAE = st A Lt A&
HERTRAEMES  THERBIREXK
BB BT IRTHEE K SRR -
Rt #t EEHERM s AEEBEHE
REHRBEIRIFA14,101,00087T (ZF
Z—%:15,306,000% 7T) DEAHEER] ©

RIEHETEERN R EREBIRTEE
B8R RERIDIRI1F] °EE§$§E’7
BERENLEEFENF B R (REMEA
HIEREED) 497217,697,0008 5 (ZF - —
£F 119,209,000 7T) ©

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e) M+-HB=+—HWEmMI A
December il
2022 2021
—=E-= B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial assets: EHEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFEFAEGENEHEE 12,255 12,794
Financial assets at amortised cost REBIEN AT ENEREE 86,695 87,070
Financial liabilities: EHaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R FHM AT ENTREE 1,264,007 1,123,795
Financial guarantee B PSR 36,000 35,000
(f)  Fair values f 2FE

Except as disclosed in notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and financial liabilities as
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

s

7.

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFEFAE®
(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@) MIE_-_FR-E-—F+C
December 2022 and 2021: B=+—HWATEERIKE :
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRAUTAHRAEATE H
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
it B - famt B=H ZF=Z

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT

Recurring fair value REEQATEANE:
measurements:
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATE ABRD
THEE
Unlisted equity securities JEEmEmEs - - 12,255 12,255
Fair value measurements using: Total
FEUTAXGEATE: Mt
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
b £ B4R $=H T_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEx FET TET
Recurring fair value REWATESE:
measurements:
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATE ABED
THEE
Unlisted equity securities FELmEERES = = 12,794 12,794
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities measured

7. AFEFTE®

(b) REF=RATEFIENEEHA

at fair value based on level 3: BEHK:
2022 2021
Assets =13 —E-= BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Description g T#ET THETT
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFESF A BTN EmMEE
— Unlisted equity securities — LR
At 1 January T—H—H 12,794 58,632
Fair value gains/(losses) recognised ~ FAEE IR A FE
in profit or loss H& 5/ (B518) 975 (46,362)
Exchange difference RERA (1,514) 524
At 31 December n+=ZB=+—H 12,255 12,794
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7.

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value based on level 3: (continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets and liabilities held at end of
reporting period are presented in other income, gains
and losses, net in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs used
in fair value measurements at 31 December 2022
and 2021:

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are reviewed by the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group has
engaged external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to

perform the valuations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BE_T_"HF+"A=+—HILEFE

(c)

R FRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFESE @
Disclosure of valuation process used by the (€0 MIEZZHER-IE-—F+=
Group and valuation techniques and inputs used B=+—B#&&£ErAGERRE
in fair value measurements at 31 December 2022 RATFEFHERBGES ERE
and 2021: (continued) ABEBKE . (@B
Level 3 fair value measurements ZRATFEAE
Fair value
ATl
2022 2021
k- Sl —E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FEx
Effect on fair
Valuation value for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Assets
!‘n’ ABEE IS
E:pu fhER* FHERAYE #E - ATENEE BE
Unlisted equity
investments:
FLIEERE .
- Zhongxin Asset-based N/A N/A N/A - -
(Heilongjiang) approach TERA (2021: N/A) (2021: N/A)
Internet BEERE TER 1EH
Microfinance (CB-—%: (CZ—#F:
Co., Limited* R AEAH)
—HH (ERDE
B )NEERE
RAE
— Zuoshishi Income Long term annual 2% (2021: 3%) Increase 11,225 11,045
Technology approach growth rate 2% (ZBEZ—F: 3%) (2021: Increase)
Service (Beijing) WA RHFEEX wmCE——F:
Company Y1)
Limited*
—HEERNRRE Weighted average 11% (2021: 13%) Decrease
(ER) BRAT cost of capital M% (CEZ—%F: (2021: Decrease)
MEFHHERR A 13%) D (CBI-F:
L)
Discount for lack of 15.8% (2021: 16.0%) Decrease
marketability 15.8% (ZE_—F: (2021: Decrease)
Bz G REIEiTE 16.0%) AL (CBEI—F:
)
- Spring Power  Market Market P/S ratio 4.4 (2021: 3.4) Increase 1,030 1,749
Holdings Limited ~ approach miEmHEE 44 (T (2021: Increase)
misE 3.4) #mnCE-——£:
1)
12,255 12,794
*  For identification purposes only ANNUAL REPORT 2022 — %= — 5 133
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—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four operating segments as follows:

1. Car rental segment — primarily engages in the provision

of car rental services;

2. Wood-related business segment — primarily engages
in the processing and distribution of furniture wood,
and the manufacturing and sales of antique-style wood
furniture and other wooden products;

3. Financing services and investments segment — primarily
engages in money lending business through the

provision of loans and financial investment holding; and

4. Others segment - engages in provision of other
services, such as public relations and property

investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment results, which exclude unallocated interest
income, unallocated other income and gains, unallocated
depreciation, unallocated finance costs as well as corporate

and other unallocated expenses.

Segment assets exclude certain financial assets at FVTPL,
tax recoverable, cash and bank balances, restricted bank
balances and other unallocated head office and corporate

assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings, tax
payable and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*—l (#)
Wood-related Financing services
Car rental business and investments Others Total
REfE KHERER RERBRRE -t &t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
CB-CE "3”-F ZBCCE CZ--F ZB-CE CZ--¢ ZBCCE C3”-F BCCE C3C-%
HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000
Téx TEr TEm TEx  TEm  TEr  TEm TEr  TEm TEx
Segment revenue: Y
Sales of goods HEGR - - 133049 104,406 - - - - 133049 104,406
Car rental income RESELUN 11901 "1 - = - S - - 11901 1177
Senvice income A - - - - - 5 428 484 428 484
Revenue W& 11,901 M7 133,049 104,406 - - 428 484 145,378 116,067
Segment resuts BEED (038 (@09 17459 657 1038 @59 (G0 (3219 723 (158509
Reconciliations: HE:
Unallocated interest income FABFEMA 19 210
Unallocated depreciation on EN VG
property, plant and equipment RIEHE (32) (139
Unallocated allowances for ECLs on other ~ EEWZUENBEESEE
receivables FREEE (35,578) (769)
Unallocated provision for financial quarantee B ERANERE (1,000 (2000
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMFIEHEE
expenses (12,778) (7.842)
Unallocated finance costs FORBENL (104,353)  (105,279)
Loss before tax BREEE (146,489)  (274327)
Segment assets AuEE 4275 55064 96508 113274 12770 13309 87 8 155640 181735
Reconciliations: HiE:
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMAIEEE 40515 4909
Total assets BEEE 196,155 230,825
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:

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. EER @
Wood-related Financing services
Car rental business and investments Others Total
REHE ARREER HERBRRE ft Eh
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
C$TTE CEC-f DRCCE CEC-4 DQLCE CEC-4 DQIIE CEC-F DRIDE CEC-f
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS000 ~ HKS$'000  HKS000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEx TEm TEr  TEm  TEx  TEr TEx  FEm  TiEn
Segment liabilities -1 104,069 121863 188,869 268,667 40,950 40,950 2,509 2508 336,397 433988
Reconcliations: B
Corporate and other LERAMFAREE
unallocated liabilities 1,262,610 1,060,656
Total liabiltes EREE 1,599,007 1,494,644
Other segment information: EthAEER
Finance costs HENA 121 - - - - 9288 978 9385 1243
Depreciation on property nE BERRENE
plant and equipment 8,869 5,325 - - - - - - 8,869 5325
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 939 1,052 - 116 - = - = 939 1,168
Impairment of ight-of-use assets ERREEAE - 24 - - - - - - - 244
Impairment of intangble assets BNEERE - 7462 - = - = - = - 7,462
Capital expenditure ELNs 104 18173 193 - 7 - - 59 1104 18173
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BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. IPER @
The PRC Hong Kong Total
HE A st
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZEIZ§ T Z®BIZH "Z--F ZEIZE “T°—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET FTERT TET TERT TERT
Revenue from external customers REINBE PRI 145,378 116,067 - = 145,378 116,067
Non-current assets FERBEE 60,072 67,799 23 430 60,095 68,229
Non-current assets EREEE
(excluding financial instruments) (EBIERN 47,817 55,005 23 430 47,840 55,435
Revenue from major customers REXERFHWE

Revenues from customers of corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

REEBEMNERB@EGEAERS
WEHERI10% U EEWTF -

as follows:
2022 2021
—E-C B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
Customer A EEA 16,776 40,336
Customer B = FB 11,991 18,850
Customer C =ZRAC 23,667 =
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BMBFHRRMTE

2

REVENUE W mk
Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers by FRRIZERIRBENEREL
major products or service line for the year is as follows: WmoHFmT
2022 2021
—g-C —BC—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue 1§
Contracts with customers within the REBMBRESERE155
scope of HKFRS 15: BLEANETAEL !
Sales of goods HEE W 133,049 104,406
Service income T ON 428 484
133,477 104,890
Other sources: HMHR
Car rental income AEBEHEERA 11,901 11,177
145,378 116,067

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and

2 55 (B B9 W o AROIR S B 8 B R B R 7t

services at a point in time and over time in the following —EBREBEUATEIEERG R EE
major product line and geographical regions: B EmRARTS .
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Time of revenue recognition: ol R A RF R
At a point in time e ElS kS 133,049 104,406
Over time NaEE G 428 484
133,477 104,890
Geographical market: &%
The PRC ] 133,477 104,890
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

10. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND (LOSSES),
NET

10. HAUA kR (§548) FEE

2022 2021
-z -l — (==
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FET
Other income Hhg A
Bank interest income IRTTH) BWA 19 2
Government grants (note i) BT #ERG (BY3E) 65 —
Other interest income HAR EWA - 322
Others (note ii) Hth (B 2ii) 3,925 19
4,009 343
Gains and (losses), net Wi B (B518) jB58
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - KREKREE
plant and equipment, net ARSI P 2R (1,822) 2.177)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets 122 {EzT ABRAIERE
at FVTPL BEATEWR (B518) 975 (46,362)
(Loss)/gain on termination of leases, net ~ FAE#RIE (5518) W F2E (23) 4
(870) (48,535)
3,139 (48,192)

notes: (i) The government grants for the year ended 31 December 2022
represents the grant in relation to the Employment Support
Scheme which the Group complied with all attached conditions
and accordingly such grants were recognised as other income
during the year.

(ii) Other income mainly included gross margin on metal trading
of approximately HK$3,100,000 (2021: HK$Nil) and forfeiture of
car rental receipts on early termination of contracts by client of
approximately HK$716,000 (2021: HK$Nil).

Hfat - (i) BE_R__F#+-FA=+—HL
FE BSHMEARRME 5
BNl HRXERFTSREN
wRA RIL AR RERE R A
FEZHMMUA -

iy HMBAFZOEEBRZNEF
#93,100,0008 7T (CTEZ—F 1 T8
7T) REBEFIRAIKIESHTR RN
BEARIEL716,0008 T (C 2 - —4%:
THEIT) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —Z__FF#H 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nV-F j- 15

% i 2 P

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

2

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MBS

2022 2021
—ECF BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TFAET
Interests on lease liabilities HEaEHE 136 229
Interests on bank and other borrowings IRTAREMEER S 113,184 117,445
Bank charges IRITFEE 418 56
113,738 117,730

12. LOSS BEFORE TAX 12. BRiRAIESIE

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

AEBZRRABEENR (E%R)

(crediting) the following: ITF&IE
2022 2021
—E-CH BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Cost of inventories sold HEFEEMA 121,193 95,467
Depreciation on property, MM R i E
plant and equipment (note a) (Htzza) 8,901 5,464
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ERREETE
(note a) (Hizta) 939 1,168
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z NN =
— audit services — RS 1,050 1,070
— non-audit services —IERZEAR TS 210 186
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

12. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

12. B&IAIESIE @)

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#ET TFHETT
Employee benefit expenses RERHFHX
(including directors’ emoluments): (BIEEEWR) :
Wages, salaries, allowances, T&E s 2Eh
bonuses and benefits in kind TEA R BYA &= 6,451 4,084
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEMERR
(defined contribution schemes) (EEEHRETE)
(note b) (Bi5tb) 466 261
6,917 4,345
Exchange (gains)/losses, net = (Wm) S EIRFER (21) 9
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial ?%?’&ZFTED‘U\TE 5 89
assets at FVTPL (hote c) ETMEBEELTE
() /#5348 (Waztc) (975) 46,362
Allowances for ECLs on trade FEWER R TEIAE B E518
receivables g - 1,020
Allowances for ECLs on other receivables HtEWFIBNTEHREE
B 1R E 35,578 1,830
Provision for financial guarantee SRS 1,000 2,000
Provision for claims (note e) REEHREE (Hate) - 93,949
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note d)  EREEERM(E (f/32d) - 244
Impairment of intangible assets (note )  ELEERE (Hfste) - 7,462
Write-off of property, plant and Y%~ BB Fe 58 T EH
equipment (note e) (Htzte) - 35
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE -BERZEHEERER
plant and equipment, net (note ¢ 5187558 (W atc) 1,822 2,177
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases, net ~ FAE#R LB (W) F25E
(note ¢ (H1z#c) 23 (4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

12. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

notes:

(a)

(c)

(e)

142

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$8,320,000 (2021: HK$5,195,000) and HK$875,000
(2021: HK$1,052,000) respectively are included in cost of sales and
services rendered.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to its pension

schemes in future years.

The amount is included in other income, gains and (losses), net.

The amount is included in administrative expenses.

The amount is included in other expenses.

12. BE#RAEIESIE @

M 5E -

(a)

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED HAEIBEIERERAT
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lﬁF

SHFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S REMUNERATION

e EE

2

13. EEREFENTEFM

2022 2021
—E-C =T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Fees sk 71 652
Other emoluments: HMENE -
Salaries, allowances and e R R EAME
other emoluments - -
Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIHRR
(defined contribution scheme) (EzEMt=ETE) = =
711 652
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RB8E_B__FRIB_—F+Z

agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021.

(a)

Independent non-executive directors ()

The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive

B=+—HLFE BESEHENF

EMEREAMEZ -

BIERITES
FRNENREBNBIFRTES

directors during the year were as follows: HEEWT
2022 2021
k<o B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FH7T
Mr. Zhao Xianming HERLE 120 120
Mr. An Dong (ceased on ZEREE (W2 ZF
26 May 2022) ARAZH+/NHEMD 48 120
Mr. Wan Man Wah (resigned on BXESLE (RZE-—F
8 December 2021) +ZANBED - 82
Mr. So Yin Wai (appointed on BERSE W2 —F
23 December 2021) +TZAZ+=REZD 123 -
Ms. Zhao Xiao Lian (appointed on HhEZL (W22 2HF
1 June 2022 and resigned on ANA—BEZFEINRZZ
1 November 2022) ——H+—FB—H#&D 60 -
351 322

There were no other emolument payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

+—-A

RBEE-__FR-T"—F
—+t—HLEEE TEH

AR B I IFTE B RIFEN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S REMUNERATION (continued)

13. EEREEHNTEFHFMN @

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) BMITESZ -IFRTEZEREHENT
the chief executive officer B
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other  Discretionary scheme Total
Fee  emoluments bonus  contributions remuneration
Hd 2Rk
s Hita S RfETEAL BAEETEIHR e zE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F#ET T#ET FER T#ET
2022 k- et
Executive director: HiTEE !
Mr. Lyu NingJiang (Chief BEILE
Executive Officer) (BERHTE) 240 - - - 240
Non-executive director: FHITEE:
Mr. Hu YongGang K% 120 - - - 120
360 - - - 360
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

s

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

EEREFEHITEFHFMN @

Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) BITESZ -IFRTEZEREENT
the chief executive officer (continued) B (@)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other  Discretionary scheme Total
Fee emoluments bonus  contributions  remuneration
e RER
ikn Efiis WIETEA BRASHEIEN HAe%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEr FET TET THET
2021 ZEZ-§
Executive directors: RTEE:
Mr. Lyu NingJiang eI
(Chief Executive Officer) (BER#TE) 165 = = = 165
Non-executive directors: FHITEE !
Mr. Hu YongGang K%L 165 - - - 165
330 - . . 330

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transaction,
arrangement and contract in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the directors’
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

(o)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

8=

14.

146

—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included no
(2021: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 13 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining five (2021: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor the chief executive officer of
the Company are as follows:

14.

haEEHNES

ER RERBHNESTES (CF
T—E R EE RENHHHER
REXHEI3-FR HpRR (T8
T ) FEADEETRERR
TENRSFEANFHEBEOT

2022 2021
g T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TFAET

Salaries, allowances and e R REMENS
other emoluments 3,223 2,131

Pension scheme contributions BB EIMHR

(defined contribution scheme) (EzBMHETE) 67 72
3,290 2,203

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 there
was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any directors

or five highest paid employee of the Group.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

REBEE_ZT__FR-_FT_—F+=
A=+—HLEEFE ZEAHBEEXY
HENTFERNESFHALLERSHES
BIB9S TEAL

WA F T RENFESREE
BRABIT

Number of employees

EEA#
2022 2021
—E-= B
Below HK$1,000,000 181,000,000 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,00135 75 51,500,000 7% 1

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 there
was no emolument paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 14 as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for both years.

RBEE_E_—_Fx_ZT_—F+_
B=+—HUEFE AEEHERE N
NENFESHMF4FMENEAR
LEREHFNEEMNSEANMALRER
P MA TR (EA BB E - i
MEFEN BEEEREXAFDERE
A2
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BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

s

15.

T2 F+ZA=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15. PRSI
2022 2021
g T
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FEx FET

Current — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BIHA— PR (b 2EPRISTR

Charge for the year FANEZ 3,510 218
Deferred tax (note 35) IEIERR (FF5E35) 403 15
Income tax expense FTiSRMREx 3,913 233

Under the two-tiered profits rates regime, profits not
exceeding HK$2 million of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities in Hong Kong
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
25% based on the assessable profit in accordance with the
tax rules and regulations in the PRC (2021: 25%).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

Expect for PRC Enterprise Income Tax, no provision of Hong
Kong Profits Tax, and any other tax has been provided in the

consolidated financial statement (2021: Nil).

EMBRHFEREET G ERERE
RN BE2E 8B BT EfFi%8.25%
PMERGIR > MBE2E&B T T
R216.5% B IR TR o 15 5 W 4R Hl
%'J/E'ﬁ%ﬁﬂfgzéﬂ%ﬂ’]*%ﬁl?ﬁ%ﬂ@

i ) A R 121 6. 5% B TE IR R AR o

RIEPERFERE BOERRE W ER
REA > hESERERIE25%H X
(ZEZ—F . 25%) stigHE o

HAthth & &R F BN IBR 2 T %
BArEREEMTRRENRERE
BITHRBZEA 2R REMFE-

BRPBEEMRERIN REMBHRRL
BREANERAEAMEMRIESR
BE(CTE—F:8) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 15.

The reconciliations between the income tax expense and

the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

FRiSHR @

FREMAX ARRATBEFEUS AR
BRMEFFRZEERNOT !

2022 2021
—®_-_ R —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Loss before tax PRIRATES 1B (146,489) (274,327)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEENFRIEER16.5%
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (ZTZ—F:165%) 5t &
MR (24,170) (45,264)
Effect of difference in tax rate BERLNAEE R E MR
for specific jurisdiction or enacted BEBITAENRENTE
by local tax authority 594 (13,688)
Tax effect of utilisation of R SERI R FE SRV IR IE A5 18
tax losses not previously recognised NI & - (1,144)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARBBRANRBLZE (214) (702)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR BEAZ MR FEEZE
tax 7,798 28,100
Tax losses not recognised RIERIRIEE 18 19,905 32,931
Income tax expense PRISIRB 3,913 233

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended

31 December 2022 and 2021,

proposed since the end of the reporting period.

nor has any dividend been

16. IR

HERRS -
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in e SRR MYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

17. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company and the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

17. i858
(@) SREXEE
SREAFEDREAATES
ANEGENBBRENDRTE
BRI TRt E .

SRERBIBFGEDER

2022 2021
g B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FHTT
Loss k548
Loss attributable to owners of the ~ ANABHE AELEIERK
Company and loss for the purpose BRI EEREREIEN
of calculating basic loss per share 518 (150,133) (274,550)
Number of shares
iab g 4=
2022 2021
Number of shares Liavt 4=
Weighted average number of RARstESRER
ordinary shares in issue during the RN AEE BT
year for the purpose of calculating &8I0 T 2L
basic loss per share 342,572,857 342,572,857

(b) Diluted loss per share
No diluted loss per share has been presented as there
were no potential dilutive shares outstanding for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

b) SREBEHER
RBE_ZE__FR-ZT_—F
TTA=t—HLEE LEZE
JgR#EHEE RASILED
B[ITHEINZBERERD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME -BERRE

150

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold Motor
equipment improvements vehicles Total
Hih-RE
R HERE RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FTET TAET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2021 RZ2Z—-%—HA—H 1,563 112 15,389 17,064
Additions RE - - 18,173 18,173
Disposals HE - - (4,840) (4,840)
Written off s (158) - - (158)
Exchange difference ERER 42 3 693 738
At 31 December 2021 and R_E-_—F#+"H=+—H
1 January 2022 RZE__F—-H—H 1,447 115 29,415 30,977
Additions RE 200 1,857 8,979 11,036
Disposals HE = = (8,937) (8,937)
Exchange difference ERELR (120) (68) (2,497) (2,683)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ_#+-B=+—H 1,527 1,906 26,960 30,393
Accumulated depreciation ? ‘Hﬁ%
At 1 January 2021 A_ET—E—H—H 997 33 3,292 4,322
Charge for the year ERRE 212 57 5,195 5,464
Disposals HE - - (2,130) (2,130)
Written off (G (123) - - (123)
Exchange difference R = 4 2 407 450
At 31 December 2021 and RZZEZ—F+-/B=+—H
1 January 2022 RZE-__F—H—H 1,127 92 6,764 7,983
Charge for the year FAMZ 167 414 8,320 8,901
Disposals HE (1 - (4,712) (4,713)
Exchange difference EREE (102) (20) (777) (899)
At 31 December 2022 _E__F+”-A=+—H 1,191 486 9,595 11,272
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-RA=+-H 336 1,420 17,365 19,121
At 31 December 2021 A _E_—F+"HA=+—H 320 23 22,651 22,994
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group's motor vehicles are identified to be part of the
car-rental cash-generating unit. During the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, no impairment was made on the
property, plant and equipment since the recoverable amount
of the Group's property, plant and equipment is higher than
its carrying amount. Details of the impairment testing are set

out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. Y% - BREBGRE @

AEBZREHIASREREERS
Eiﬁuzﬂﬁ BE_ T K"
T—H+ZA=+—HLEEE B8R
¢$l2%¥ B 5B e 5 B9 AT Wi [B] <&
EEREREE BYE - BERKE
BRI E - BRI ENF N EH
RixEMBIwRERMEE210

19. FHEEE

Leased motor Leased

vehicles properties Total

HESE HEYE 4t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET T#T T#

At 1 January 2021 RZE_—%—HF—H 614 404 1,018

Additions nNE 2,141 459 2,600

Depreciation e (1,052) (116) (1,168)

Termination of leases RIETEE - (340) (340)

Impairment HE (244) S (244)

Exchange difference ERELR 30 1 41
At 31 December 2021 and N —&F

1 January 2022 +ZB=+—Hk

T "F—H—H 1,489 418 1,907

Additions wE - 209 209

Depreciation e (875) (64) (939)

Termination of leases RIFHE (165) (397) (562)

Exchange difference R = (85) (25) (110)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF

+-B=+—-H 364 141 505
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19.

152

—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$994,000 (2021:
HK$2,390,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$505,000 (2021: HK$1,907,000) as at
31 December 2022. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be

19. EREEE @

ﬁé:s _THE+"B=+—H w38

EBEH994,0008T (CE - —F
2,390,000 7T) %B RERAEEENS
505,000 7t (Z&=—4% : 1,907,000

7 7T) OKfﬁﬂ)\h*ﬁ_E’ﬁﬂaﬁéﬂPﬂ’ﬂ
EREmS > B E WA M E A H At

used as security for borrowing purposes. R - HEBEFSANBERER
2022 2021
—E-C =BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRESEITE 939 1,168
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaEFERX
(included in finance costs) Gt ARE R A) 136 229
Expenses relating to short-term lease 52 HATH E R
(included in costs of sales and services (5t A8 & K I AR FEAY B %)
rendered) 811 1,617
(included in administrative expenses) GtAfTEER) 886 2,880
Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 39(b) EHEERERBBHEFBINES

to the consolidated financial statements.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and motor
vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of 2 years to 3 years (2021: 2 years to 3 years),
but may have extension and termination options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
as per the contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.

R TSI R M EE39(b) °

RMER *EBHEEZERAER
WAEFEEE - %H‘EA?IA.JE’J
EEMRA2ERIFE (CE-_—F 128
E3F) - WRIERA T HAERRALE
EER-AEHEERNER LW
B E R ERE BRI - REE
HERRFEATHERENRER
FEERAGNNERLEESAR
SEHIMATHIRAR o
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19.

20.

BRI EE

e year ended 31 December 2022

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
been no such triggering event.

there has

The Group's right-of-use assets are identified to be part of
the car-rental cash-generating unit. Please refer to note 21 for

the details of impairment assessment.

19. EREEE @

o> BB EBREMFIABAZERIE
BERNBEREEEREER  AEET

BEMTEERS S MR E T LR
EER-BE_T__ERIT_—F

TZRA=+—HLFE HEILBFE
e

AEBZERHEESELHNAAER
ERcES BN 2D - BREBET
fHzE15 0 55 2 M sE21 0

GOODWILL 20. &
2022 2021
il B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Cost 573
At 1 January and 31 December K—B—HBr+ZB=+—H 24,939 24,939
Accumulated impairment losses RetimEsE
At 1 January and 31 December n—BA—Br+ZE=+—H (24,939) (24,939)

Carrying amount IREE
At 1 January and 31 December nw—

A—BE+ZA=+—H

Goodwill acquired through a business combination was

allocated to the car rental cash-generating unit.

The goodwill was fully impaired in the prior years and
accordingly no further impairment assessment was performed
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BREBCHEBENHEERIEE
AEHEREELE M-

ﬁgmuﬁﬁfg%%{ﬁﬁ ) .JH:E!ZE -
HIEFELRE—DE ﬁﬁfﬁaﬁé°
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. EREE

Vehicle rental

Licence business
plates licence Total
REMA
Hg e 4ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FER FEr
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—HF—H 15,495 49,464 64,959
Exchange difference ERELE 424 1,353 1,777
At 31 December 2021 and RW_E_—F+-B=+—H
1 January 2022 ER_E__#—HF—H 15,919 50,817 66,736
Exchange difference P A= & (1,254) (4,001) (5,255)
At 31 December 2022 W_E2-__F#+"B=+—H 14,665 46,816 61,481
Accumulated impairment losses RERERSE
At 1 January 2021 R_E_—F—F—H 8,080 25,797 33,877
Impairment during the year FENRE 1,780 5,682 7,462
Exchange difference ERERR 249 797 1,046
At 31 December 2021 and NZ_EZ—F+ZH=+—H
1 January 2022 E_E-__F#—HF—H 10,109 32,276 42,385
Exchange difference ERELE 797) (2,541) (3,338)
At 31 December 2022 N_E--F+-HA=+—H 9,312 29,735 39,047
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2022 W-EB-—-#+=-BA=+—H 5,353 17,081 22,434
At 31 December 2021 W Z2_—F+"HB=+—H 5,810 18,541 24,351
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21.

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The license plates and vehicle rental business license with
indefinite useful lives were acquired through a business
combination and were allocated, together with the right-of-
use assets of leased motor vehicles, to the car rental cash-
generating unit for impairment testing. The license plates
have no expiry dates and the vehicle rental business license
has been renewed from March 2023 to 20 March 2026. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group will be
able to continuously renew the vehicle rental business license

at minimal costs.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of car rental cash-generating unit, in particular to the
intangible assets, at the and of the reporting period, having
regard to the market conditions of the Group's services.
These intangible assets are allocated to the Group's car
rental segment. During the year ended 31 December
2021, impairment losses of license plates and vehicle
rental business license amounted to HK$1,780,000 and
HK$5,682,000 respectively had been recognised in profit or
loss.

21.
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_+E cARNBEERS AEEEE
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g o
7in

AEBEZEAEBBRHHMIBRT
HRESHRABEHERSEEENMN (L
HERTEE) N WElSEET TR
HoREBRTEENREAEENS
HERESH - BE_T-_—F+A
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the directors reassessed the
recoverable amounts of licence plates and vehicle rental
business license. The recoverable amounts of relevant assets
has been determined on value-in-use basis, based on the
future cash flow projections using income approach. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the relevant assets. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
relevant assets operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover
are based on past practices and expectations on market

development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for
the next five years with the residual period using the annual
growth rate of 2.1% (2021: 1.8%). This rate does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.
The discount rate and terminal growth rate used were 17%
and 2% respectively. As the estimated recoverable amounts
exceed the carrying amounts of these intangible assets as
of 31 December 2022, the directors consider no further

impairment is required.

In car segment, the recoverable amount of approximately
HK$16,922,000 for the relevant assets was determined on
the value-in-use basis, based on future cash flow projections
using income approach. The discount rate and the terminal
growth rate used were 13% and 2% respectively.

21.

BILEE ®
RIE-__HF+_"_HF=+—H =&
W B RS EHEAEBRRN A
Wol&2E - HRBEEN A KREISEER
B AR RETEENREHERE
HEERBAWRAZEE MRREME X
AN ETERRIVBMABREX VER
E - FBEEMNERIRNEEB AEH
MEBAIRMEAMEHEERENT
R BRI E E N E R BRI AT
EAFEIRE - REERAIZEREEL
EERFEMENRPFEFHEEEE
RABRE - FAHENELEXREHEB
FEFRFEIRTIGERAR L

AEBFMGRENRERERENREE
ERMEREAFEFNRITPVBES
FIRBEREERER21% (T —
F1.8%) ZIERENBBBERMETS
HEHRPIEER CHMRERRR
WEEDNBI1TBR2% - R _E -
F+ZA=+—H HRZEEFEE
BEsT IR el BEREE EER
AEEBIEHE— D BE

POSEDE BB ER T EIE LN
16,922,000%%*&%5&5'Efﬁi/)lL%%E
AiREREEEERBWAEERE -
ARERERRR iiﬁT’\}DJUé}y13%
2% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

22. R—FEAE AT

2022 2021
—¥_-_C st e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted investment ELHIRE
Share of net liabilities FEILEEFER (129,735) (129,735)
Loans to an associate B—EBEATER 129,735 129,735

The loans to an associate are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, these loans are considered as part

of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Particulars of the associate as at 31 December 2022 are as

follows:
Place of
Particulars of  incorporation/
issued shares registration
Name held and business
FRrsE 8T ML~
%8 B EESYE 2tk

m—EBERATNERAERT - RER
WEEEERP -AADEEIR/ZE
%ﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁﬁﬂl&%lﬁ“ﬂ%&“ PR
BEp—8

ZHME AR _E-__F£+_H
= +—HZHEBUOT

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the Principal
Group activity
A SRR
FRiE#EaSt FEBEXRH

King Focus International ~ Ordinary shares  BVI/Hong Kong

Limited (“King Focus”) &A% HBREUEE &8

REREERAERAT
(TR

The Group's shareholding in the associate comprises equity
shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the voting power of King
Focus, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group is
able to exercise significant influence over the significant financial and
operation decisions over the entity as one out of three directors of King
Focus was designated by the Company.

14%*  Investment holding
(2021: 14%*) REER
14%
(CBZT—F114%)

AEERZBEATDNERESLEE
BEAD2EMNBRARMBAENED

vl

* BEAEERFAERBNREEDN20%
MARABDEEIR  FEBARENHZE
BHNEAMBREERRTEERTLE

REFR=-UEEFNHP—(IHERAFME

TEo
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 22.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of
the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

R—REBEATNED @

TREBBETEAERBEUEIEA
RIPFTEERIIFERBMEATNEEE

2022 2021
—g-C BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FHTT
At 31 December: w+=ZB=+—8:
Carrying amounts of interests R EREE - =
Year ended 31 December: #E+_BA=+—HILFE:
Profit from continuing operations REFERLESER 2 mf) = =
Profit after tax from discontinued REBKIEREXF R EET
operations = -
Other comprehensive income Hth2EERA = =
Total comprehensive income EHEUWALRE = S
The Group has not recognised loss for the years ended 31 BHE_Z_— “g_—F+—-AH

December 2022 and 2021 for the associate. The accumulated

losses not recognised were approximately HK$7,561,000
(2021: HK$7,561,000).

The Group provide a corporate guarantee in favour of
independent third party in respect of a loan facility granted to
an associate of the Group which is set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

=+ —HEFE - AEBLERAMBER
EEREE REANRFTHEIELNS
7,561,000/ 7T (Z& = —4% 17,561,000
BT °

AEERETFAER-—HBEQSTHN
ERMBMERHETUBUE =A%
AR RBHER ZBERENGEEHHR
wMIEE34
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BRAFESABGENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2022 2021
—®¥-F = _—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FHETT
Non-current financial assets BEARAFEIABREN
designated at FVTPL JEREERMEE
Unlisted equity investments JELHEERE
Zhongxin (Heilongjiang) Internet R (BRE)D) ¥/ NEER
Microfinance Co., Ltd.* (note i) BRAT (M) = =
Zuoshishi Technology Service (Beijing) MEBEHERFHRF LR BREAT
Company Limited* (note ii) (P i) 11,225 11,045
Spring Power Holdings Limited Spring Power Holdings Limited
(note iii) (B &Eiii) 1,030 1,749
12,255 12,794

*  For identification purposes only
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BAFEAEENESREE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has 2% of the issued
share capital of an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC principally

engaged in internet microfinance business.

The management engaged an independent qualified professional
valuer to determine the fair value of this investment by applying the
asset-based approach as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. Under the
asset-based approach, the fair value of this investment refers to the
fair values of various assets and liabilities on the statement of financial
position of the investment as at the valuation date with reference to
publicly available information of comparable companies.

(ii) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had 11% of the issued
share capital of an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC principally
engaged in the innovation service for start-up technology companies

and related investment activities.

The management engaged an independent qualified professional
valuer to determine the fair value of this investment by applying the
income approach as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The income
approach measures the value of this investment by the present value of
its future economic benefits.

(iii) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had 2.9% of the issued
share capital of an unlisted company incorporated in the BVI. The
investee is an investment holding company, with a major subsidiary,
Hanson Robotics Limited, engaged in development and manufacture of
humanlike robots.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the management engaged an
independent qualified professional valuer to determine the fair value of
this investment. The valuer adopted the market approach to determine
the valuation parameters derived from market prices and financial data
of listed companies in a similar business and with a similar business
model as that of the company being valued for the equity interest in

this unlisted company.

(iv) The fair values of these unlisted equity investments are measured using
valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs and hence
were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Details of the valuations are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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RIB-__FR-F-_—F+-R=+—
B> AEEES —BIR R EEMARZAIE
LB RBZ2%BEITRA > AR EEMR
FEEMPNEEEXRF-

K:ﬁi_ﬁ&fvf—ﬁ+ A=+—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n§R

For th
HE

24.

25.

BRI EE

e year ended 31 December 2022

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

INVENTORIES 24. 78
2022 2021
—E-C BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex AT
Merchandise =R 14,887 70,457
TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. FEUNBRTR
2022 2021
—ZE-_ e
HK$'000 HK$’'000
F#Ex TFAE7T
Trade receivables JE UK BR =R 902,363 867,318
Less: Allowance for ECLs B FEERE EEREE (833,772) (834,118)
68,591 33,200
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on FEREERETEREERNULE

credit with credit period generally ranging from 30 to 90
days, or could be longer under certain circumstances. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. Overdue trade receivables are interest-

bearing.

The Group generally does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's other
borrowings were secured by the Group's pledged trade
receivables of gross amount approximately HK$600,639,000
(2021: HK$600,639,000).

&R EEH—BNFI0E90K T
BREABRATAEER  AEBERDEE
BEEafiEBRR SREEAESETE
MR E R A4S iR o B EAFE AR RN A 5T
Be

AEER R EEBURIRRGEERE
BEEABRRRIEMEERAY B
R TER

A _E_—F+"B=+—8> ZIK%
KA 75600,639,0008 T (B~ —
£ 1 600,639,000 7T) BIFEURERT ET’E
AEREEETEMEENIKR
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BEZ__F+_A=+—HLEE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEURRRTR va
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice RFZEZEHE BUR (KINFRTERR
date, and net of allowance for ECLs, is as follows: EEREEE) NREDTNT !
2022 2021
—8_-_ B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Within 90 days 90k~ 68,591 33,200
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are AEFERBRKERNKRABEUARES
denominated in RMB. Bo
26. LOAN RECEIVABLE 26. FEWER
2022 2021
—g-= —m—_4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Loan receivable FER &R 15,629 15,629
Less: Allowance for ECLs B TRHRE EEERE (15,629) (15,629)
Current portion BOEAER = =
The loan receivable was made to an independent borrower F‘EH& SR Jh A —RIBIERAEL > I
and was secured by (i) the pledge of an aircraft leased to the LIVERANE—SE2EHEEF LT
borrower by a company wholly owned by the borrower’s sole HEFERANREER ; Ki)Em
director; and (i) 49% issued share capital of the borrower. AN49%BIE E1TIRAIEIRIF - EWE =KX
The loan receivable, bears interest at 15% per annum and is BENFKI15%:T B EZARBHEH
repayable with a maturity period of 18 months from the date HEstR18ERER-_2—hEF=A
of agreement, was due on 21 March 2019. The borrower has T HEH-ERABRIBHAZE
defaulted in repayment on due date of 21 March 2019. —NWE=ZAZ+—HENER-
As at 31 December 2022, the allowance for ECLs in i _fﬁ +ZA=+—H"%8
respect of the loan receivable was HK$15,629,000 (2021: HMEWKERNEBHEEGREER
HK$15,629,000). %15,629,000%m(_$:—¢ :

15,629,000/ 7T) °
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s

27.

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

27. igﬁf%’xlﬁ ¥ R E At FEULTR
1

2022 2021

—_=__ el — e

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FHETT

Prepayments AT RIE 34,478 5,068

Deposits b 1,871 3,433

Other receivables (note) HhpE U eE (st 137,177 137,384

Less: Allowance for ECLs o FERRE B IE R (125,063) (89,485)

48,463 56,400

note: st

Included in other receivables was (i) consideration receivable of approximately HMBEKRZRBESEHE - \FHEFLTR

HK$82,041,000 (2021: HK$82,041,000) in relation to the disposal of unlisted
equity fund in 2018 and the allowance for ECLs was fully provided in 2018;
(i) receivables in relation to an acquired convertible bond of approximately
HK$33,978,000 (2021: HK$33,978,000) reclassified from financial assets
designated at FVTPL during the year 2020 and the allowance for ECLs was
fully provided during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$Nil);
and (i) miscellaneous receivables from various debtors of approximately
HK$21,158,000 (2021: HK$21,365,000) and the allowance for ECLs as at 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$9,044,000 (2021: HK$7,444,000).

Save for the allowance for ECLs on other receivables of
approximately HK$125,063,000 (2021:HK$89,485,000)
provided as at 31 December 2022, none of the above assets
is impaired at the end of the reporting period.

Details of the ECLs assessment are set out in note 6(b)(iii) to

the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —ZE - —FFR

AESHEBRNEWRAE482,041,0008 T (ZF

Z—% 182,041,000 7T) RRZE—NEBEE
Yt RBEHEEFEREE (N F£81E
EARATEFABENESREEENNEZE
Uit B ] 42 5% 15 %5 FE WLk 1B 4933,978,00058 7T (=
T —4 133,978,000 RREBEEZZT
E+Z/A=+— Emﬁﬁe*ﬁﬁk%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg
B CE—F 281 ; RiiVEETRAE
AR FEU 3 IEA921,158,0008 T (CE - —4
21,365,00087T) R _E-_—_&#+_"A=+—81
MTEEAE BB EH 499,044,000 T (22— —
£ 17,444,000 7T) ©

RZEZZ_F#+"A=+—H8" kK
HtEKRDRBEEREEGERESE
#125,063,0008 T (Z&2 = —4%F :
89,485,000/ 7T) 9 RIREHAZER > bt
BEHFRR[BE

BHEEBEENFBEE N RE
] M 5E6(b)ii) ©
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28. BANK BALANCES AND RESTRICTED BANK  28.
BALANCES

IR1THE R R Z IRFIIRITARER

2022 2021
—E-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Bank balances IRITASER 4,060 2,539
Restricted bank balances (note) ZRRGERITAEER (MT5E) 59 =
4,119 2,539
note: P 5E

Bank balances of HK$59,000 were frozen by a bank under a court order as a

subsidiary was involved in a lawsuit.

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$3,436,000 (2021: HK$2,382,000). Conversion of RMB into
other currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. The Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

B — BB A B E PRk SRITHHR59,0008
TBRITRIE ERTen < WA ©

W_E2E__H£+-_B=+—H"
AEBUARKSENIRITLE R
#%3,436,0008 7T (ZBE - —F
2,382,000 7T) - ARERETEN
CONEBIBIEG ) B (45 TE ~ EERASE
EERE) AT FRBMEMEE K
EEEAEARREREEEIIEEEDN
FTRARBRBAAHME
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BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE
29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. FETRRTR
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice RIEEE R H R AR BRES 0 A7 U0
date is as follows: T
2022 2021
g T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHT
Within 30 days 30k 4,236 16,434
31 to 60 days 31E60K 5,345 19,608
61 to 180 days 61E180K 5,743 60,529
181 to 365 days 181FE365K% 42,202 -
Over 365 days 365K E 95 104
57,621 96,675
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FETERR AR — R A& EI0E
settled on 30 to 90 days after the month-end statement. QOKRAEE ©
30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HtEIrRIERKR BRI
2022 2021
- E 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Other payables (note a) HAENSZIE (Mfsta) 332,628 227,305
Provision for claims (note b) RIESHREHE (N5Eb) 287,924 295,437
Accruals fESTIE 4,159 5,565
Receipts in advance TR TRIE 22,824 27,918
647,535 556,225
notes: P 5E -
(a) Other payables represent (i) amounts due to certain independent (a) HMEMMBR(NENETHRIS =
third parties of approximately HK$83,150,000 (2021: HK$65,089,000); 73 B9RRIAAI83,150,0008 7T (ZF = —
and (ii) interest payables of approximately HK$249,478,000 % 165,089,000 ) ; Ke(ii)fE AT F

B#249,478,0008 T (ZE - —£ .
162,216,00058 7T) °

(2021:HK$162,216,000).
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

notes: (continued)
(b) Provision for claims represent the followings legal claims:

(i) A provision for claim amounted to HK$200,000,000 has been
made by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
in respect of a claim of HK$200,000,000 brought against the
Company on 9 December 2020 by the joint official liquidators
in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands of Honghua Investment
Fund Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability (the “Fund”), appointed by
the holders of its Class A Shares and Class B Shares under which
the Company, as being the holder of Class C Shares of the Fund,
was requested to indemnify the holders of Class A Shares and
Class B Shares in the sum of HK$200,000,000 plus purported
returns pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreement

dated 6 July 2017 and upon the Fund was being wound up.

(ii) A provision for claim amounted to RMB33,440,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$40,947,000) has been made by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 following a judgement
and order by Zhuhai Henggin New District People’s Court (Bk
JBREIE ARERD on 2 August 2021 that a compensation
amounted to approximately RMB33.4 million with accrued
interests be settled by the Group on 2 August 2021.

(iii) A provision for claim amounted to RMB44,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$54,490,000) has been made by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 following a
judgement of the Beijing Court that the Group be required to
pay a sum of approximately RMB37.0 million plus damages of
RMB 7.5 million for breach of contract. Immediately after the
judgement, the Group made an appeal to the Beijing No.3
Intermediate People’s Court (AEIR ™ 5 =R A K ZEFT) against
the judgement. In April 2022, the Beijing No.3 Intermediate
People’s Court dismissed the Group's appeal against the
judgement. The Group has taken steps to apply for retrial of the
case.

E 1&% 17_1. TRIE R ﬁ§ n'I' H (@)

Wik (48)

(b) REBERUTERRE:

@i

(i)

(iii)
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AEBRBEE_ZE_TF+_
B=+—HBLEFE®MHonghua
Investment Fund Limited (£ B8 £ %
EEMBINERRERAT > MZ
BE£)) E'\JA@HZ@&B?&EHR@%E/\
FMEAESERHEEENHR
AEBARZZZZEE+C HjLEI
BA A B EHBZEEE200,000,000
B ITst IR REE# 200,000,000
TToREZRE > AR ((FAZE
ETWCERMDFERAN) HEKRIREK
BHA-Z—tH&tABNR
BEERARRZESEFEEBOALE
B eBEKRMIEAE ABEESRE
200,000,000/ 70 L1558 [0k ©

H#E_T-_—&#+-"A=+—81t
FE -AEENR_ZT-_—FN\BZ
HEREEEFE ARARBEN
AEmL (FEBEAR_S_—F
NBZBEZFESENFEEEY
AR 33,400,0007T) % > 5H12 R B
B AR 1533,440,0007T FHER A
40,947,000 7T) ©

BE_E”_—F+°"HA=+—H
EFE AEREBEZEEILREARN
IR (AEABZTSEBNARE
37,000,000 c/n E BN EENIE
E8EE AR #7,500,0007T) &0 B
TR REL 5 A R 544,500,000
(FBE R 4954,490,0008 7T) ° 28
ARG AEBERHRAILERS
BFZHFRARERRESL LR
T__FEWAIEEHE=ZFRRA
BIAREE T AEBEZHAN
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

The movements of provision for claims during the year are as

31.

BB ERRMEE

30.

H At IR R R s TR @)
RENREHREENSHMT

follows:
2022 2021
—ECHF e i
HK$'000 HK$’'000
F#ET FAET
At 1 January n—B—H 295,437 200,000
Additional provision made FRINETIR B R = 93,949
Exchange difference E 7 =28 (7,513) 1,488
At 31 December R+-B=+—H 287,924 295,437
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. IRITREMES
2022 2021
=== B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Bank borrowings — unsecured RITEE—EILHE 14,101 15,306
Other borrowings — secured (note (a)) HMEE—BEIEF (5E@)) 100,000 100,000
Other borrowings — unsecured Hanfg & — =K1 (5Eb))
(note (b)) 732,772 682,672
846,873 797,978
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8=

—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) ~ 31.

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

168

IR1T
f

REMEE @

SRR T HIREE :

2022 2021
- T
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FAET
Within one year —FR 846,873 797,978
More than one year, HBib—F B BEmE
but not exceeding two years - -
846,873 797,978
Portion of bank borrowings that BEREREEFRR
contains a repayment on demand IRITEEE D
clause (shown under current liabilities) (PO REIEEIE NEER) (14,101) (15,306)
Less: Amount due for settlement on & | B EREEZEIISLE
demand (shown under current (COP=iEp=Ni)
liabilities) (64,987) (11,431)
Less : Amount due for settlement B ER12EENEENERR
within 12 months (shown under BB REIBER)
current liabilities) (767,785) (771,241)
Amount due for settlement after BER12EABEENER
12 months - -
Amounts shown under current RRgaEE NEnNEEE
liabilities
— repayable on demand due to —RAEREEARERER
loan covenants (note (c)) (FF5E() 784,786 789,446
— repayable within one year —BER—ERER 62,087 8,532
846,873 797,978
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) ~ 31. SRITREMEE @)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are FEBEENREEUTIEEKE !

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ RMB Total
AT AR® et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ERT TH#ET T#x
2022 —E-C
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITEE—EEE - 14,101 14,101
Other borrowings - secured HMEE -2l 100,000 - 100,000
Other borrowings — unsecured Htnfg & —mig| 691,206 41,566 732,772
791,206 55,667 846,873
2021 “E_—F
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITEE—EIEH = 15,306 15,306
Other borrowings - secured HiEE -2 &HE 100,000 - 100,000
Other borrowings - unsecured HeE—&IgH 637,555 45,117 682,672
737,555 60,423 797,978
The average interest rates at 31 December were as follows: R+ZA=+—HHNFEHFENT :
2022 2021
—F-- BT
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITREE IR 10.2% 10.2%
Other borrowings — secured HMEE-BEE 8.6% 8.6%
Other borrowings — unsecured HMEE—migis 18.7% 20.0%
Bank and other borrowings are arranged at fixed interest fﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬂﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ BEMERESEFSRE
rates from 5% to 18% per annum (2021: 5% to 20% per 18% (ZFZ—F | §F5%E20%) 5t

Bo UL AEERERZ AT ENXRER-

annum) and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)  31. #R1T

(@) At the end at the reporting period, the Group’s secured
borrowings facilities are secured by:

(i) the Group's trade receivables of gross amount
of approximately HK$600,639,000 (2021:
HK$600,639,000); and

(i)  personal and corporate guarantees provided by
Ms. Deng Shufen and Ms. Liu Jiangyuan, being
the ultimate controlling party of the Company,
and Sino Merchant Car Rental Limited, being the
immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company.

(b) At 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately
HK$62,194,000 (2021: HK$26,469,000) of available
undrawn borrowing facilities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
other borrowings amounting to approximately
HK$62,087,000 (2021: HK$8,532,000). This amount
was due to a related company controlled by Mr. Lyu
NingJiang, a director of the Company, and carried
interest at interest rate ranging from 8% to 18% (2021:
18%). The borrowing was unsecured and repayable
within one year. In addition, the Group had another
borrowing of HK$2,900,000 (2021: HK$2,900,000) due
to Mr. Deng ShiChao, a director of one of the Group's
subsidiaries in Hong Kong. This borrowing carried
interest at interest rate of 10% per annum (2021: 10%
per annum) and was also unsecured and repayable in
full on demand.
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(a)

REMEE @
REEHF AEENTIKEE
SRMEmL TIEE fEIRE

() ZAEE#600,639,0008 7T
(Z=——% : 600,639,000
HBIT) PIFEWER N AERE ; K

(i) MHRFLETRITEZLL
(ERBRRERT) RE
BHERRAS (AREEHE
BREEERRT) REMN
BARABIER

RZE-_—_F#+-A=+—H">
FTEEBNARNEEREY
62,194,000 T (ZE_—%:
26,469,0005 7T) ©

RZE-_—_F#+-B=+—H">
REBHEMMERA %62,087,000
Bt (ZTEZ—F: 8,532,000/
To) T HEARNHARAE
EREILEEFNBAEND
AIE MENFEHE18% (ZE
—F 1 18%) cZERABEILR
HRAR—FREE LI &
EEES —EENAEERE B
EEWBATRESHEBLE
RYfE F02,900,000% 75 (Z &2 - —
£ 12,900,000 70) o Z &R F
EAHFFI0% (CTE_—F . 8F
10%) » NABREFRRBRERS
HE

iR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)  (continued)

Included in other borrowings as at 31 December
2022 were, the respective outstanding balances of
2018 CB of approximately HK$123,018,000, 2019
CB of approximately HK$152,028,000 and 2020 CB
of approximately HK$245,448,000 all of which were
reclassified from convertible bonds during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Details of 2018 CB, 2019 CB and 2020 CB, are set out

in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c)  During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group breached certain covenant clauses on
agreements in respect of bank and other borrowings
by which the Group has defaulted in repayment. As a
result, as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$14,101,000
and HK$767,785,000 (2021: HK$15,306,000 and
HK$771,241,000) respectively were subject to early
repayment options exercisable by the lenders. Such
bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. As at
the approval date of these consolidated financial
statements, the lenders have not requested for the early
repayment of the bank and other borrowings.

31. $R1T

(b)

REMES @

(&)
RZIE2ZZF+ZB=+—8H"
HEMEBEREIE—N\FrnRK
BEHE - ZE—NFUIBRKRES K
TEIERFMRESSENE
BEBREED R A%123,018,000
HBIT~49152,028,0008 T & &
245,448,000/8 7 TREEZE
—_—F+ZHA=+—HLEEEB
BrRESTPEMDE

BT N\FoBRKES =
—hWERBRRESFRZ g_gfﬁ
AMRESFHNFBEHNGEEHE
ARMIEE33

RBEE_ZE_"HFR-Z°—F
+-_A=+—BLEEE - ~&H
ERBOTREMEBEEREZNET
HHBER BIL > XEBEIERA
HHBEN AL RZIZTZZ
ER_E-_—F+"B=+—
Bo##RTREMBEE D NY
14,101,000 75 % 767,785,00078
T (T2 Z—4H 15,306,000 7T
K2771,241,0007) BREHRA
THRERRFENEZEFR-
ZERTREMBENRZZEZZ
FERZIEZI—F+ZHA=1+—H
DEARDNEB RZERGHM
BHREILEHR BERALEE
KRIBBEERITREMBEE
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. fHE&&E

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
REHEERR REHEARRE
2022 2021 2022 2021

—g§-C B o8 ST

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET FERT TET

Within one year —£R 839 1,522 785 1,362
More than one year, but not BE—FETBEMmE

exceeding two years 211 1,090 209 1,028

1,050 2,612 994 2,390

Less: Future finance charges il : KRB E RIS (56) (222)  N/ARER  N/ATER
Present value of lease HEAENRE

obligations 994 2,390 994 2,390
Less: Amount due for i AR12BR REER

i
| AREE
12 months (shown under GIARBER)
current liabilities) (785) (1,362)

settlement within

Amount due for settlement AR2ERAREENTE

after 12 months 209 1,028
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied BRARMEEaSE B’JDD EEHEEEE
to lease liabilities were 10.1% per annum (2021: 10.2% per MERBSE1041% (T2 —F : §F
annum). 10.2%) °
All lease liabilities are denominated in RMB. FrEMHEaENUARESE.

172 CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED AR AREIR RS IRAE]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

irE R ARMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BETEZTF+_A=-+—HLEE

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(@ On 17 May 2016, the Company issued 2018 convertible
bond (the “2018 CB"”) and 2019 convertible bond (the
“2019 CB") with principal amounts of HK$100,000,000
and HK$100,000,000 respectively. The maturity dates of
2018 CB and 2019 CB were 16 May 2018 and 16 May
2019, respectively.

The 2018 CB and 2019 CB were convertible at the
option of bondholder at any time after the 40th day
from the date of issue and up to the 10th day prior
to the dates of maturity at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.35 per share (subject to adjustments). Based
on the initial conversion price, the 2018 CB and 2019
CB were convertible into approximately 571,429,000
ordinary shares of the Company in aggregate. The
2018 CB and the 2019 CB, if not converted, would
be redeemed at their outstanding principal amount
together with any interest accrued thereon, plus an
additional amount of a compound return of 12% per
annum over the outstanding principal amount on
maturity. The 2018 CB and the 2019 CB carry interest at
a rate of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually on 30
June and 31 December of each intervening year. The
effective interest rates of the liability components of
the 2018 CB and 2019 CB were 22.8% per annum and

23.5% per annum, respectively.

(a)

33. AJRES

RZE—XREREA+EtH &
RBBETZE—N\FAIBRKE
F(ZE—NFETHREBES))
RZE—AEFAH@ERES (TZ
E—hETBRRBRES)) T =
9 HRI#A100,000,000%8 7T &
100,000,000 7w —E— /\FH
MR EER _E—NEABRKBE
FMEPHPNA S —NFEH
B+AR"BEZZE—AFHA+
E| o

“—E-NFAIBRRESKE
—hEBREBESNESFEEA
AR IT A EEEF40H EREH
10 AIPERF IR ISR )RR
EASKR0.358 T (A FRE) - =
- N\FIMRESFKZE—AN
FOMBRESRNGBRRESER
AEH4571,429,00008 & A F) &
BR - AAHEAEBRN_Z—N
FOUMBRESFRZE—NER
RESKEEREEASIEER
HEAMEsMEEE 3zt
HAREBEASHEZFEEEI12%5
BHNEERKR  _T— N\EFH
RESM _Z—AETJBRRES
Eﬁﬂ%wﬁﬁ B¥EIN—

TREEFEFENASBEZT
E&+_H:+—E§ﬁo:;
—NEFAJBRBRES N T —HIF
AMEESEEHNINERER
KN B #22.8%523.5% o
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 33. AR {EH @

(@)  (continued)
On 10 May 2018, the Company and the bondholder of
2018 CB entered into a deed of amendment, pursuant
to which the maturity date of 2018 CB was extended
from 16 May 2018 to 16 May 2020 and the interest rate
was increased from 5% per annum to 6% per annum.
To effect the extension, the bondholder requested the
Company to settle the additional amount as described
above and an amount of HK$15,440,000 was paid
thereof. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the extended 2018 CB was 25.5% per

annum.

On 15 May 2019, the Company and the bondholder of
2019 CB entered into a deed of amendment, pursuant
to which the maturity date of 2019 CB was extended
from 16 May 2019 to 16 May 2021, the conversion
price of 2019 CB was decreased from HK$0.35 to
HK$0.1 per share and the interest rate was increased
from 5% per annum to 6% per annum. Interest payment
dates were not changed. To effect the extension, the
bondholder requested the Company to settle the
additional amount as described above and an amount
of approximately HK$25,493,000 was paid thereof. The
effective interest rate of the liability component of the
extended 2019 CB was 10.7% per annum.

Both 2018 CB and 2019 CB have the following early
redemption options. Holders of 2018 CB and 2019 CB
have the right to require the Company to redeem the
whole of the 2018 CB and 2019 CB respectively held by
them prior to the maturity date at a redemption price
equal to the respective principal amount of 2018 CB
and 2019 CB together with accrued and unpaid interest
and the additional amount upon the occurrence of
certain events that are out of the Company's control.
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(a)

(&)

R ZE-NFHEA+B ERET
M- NFOUBRRESFHE
FIRFA AT ZE BHIEZ
T N\FrMKRESZEEEH
—E-NFERBT+AHEEREZ
T_EFRBA+AH MAER
FESREMEFE6% o AHBIE
RER BHFBEAEREAQT
EELLMmBBHINEBEBITEZNTHE
115,440,000 B c - RIER ZF
—NFABRRESBBINIZE
PREFE525.5%°

RZZ—AERB+ER&A
BEZE-AFEUBREBRESDH
BEBHEFB AT LETEZA &It
BZE—NFABRRESB I
BEHBA-_ZE—NAEHEEBE+/H
ERE_ZE_—FH/+H>
MIE—NFEARRESNER
BIER0.35BTEREC1E T
MEREBSKHIENMEEES6H
ﬂgﬁﬂE%IH“@ % BT
REVCBFFBEAEREARA
EE LMEESN SRR B E A
#925,493,000B T RERE-F
—hWEJBRBRESEEIINE
MREFEH10.7%0

TE-NEUBRKRESFKZT
—hWENBRKRESFBEUATRER
ElEERE - T \FRBRE
Fh-_E-NEFERBRRESFA
ANEREREARDNEFEBEE
NEEFEENETEHERED
HHAMBER - /\Fr#R
BER_Z-NAFrBKRESE
MAZHEBOBEERE KK
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(@)  (continued)

In addition, for both 2018 CB and 2019 CB, the
Company may, at any time prior to the maturity date,
redeem in whole the 2018 CB and 2019 CB for the
time being outstanding at their principal amount
together with accrued and unpaid interest and the
additional amount to the date fixed by the Company for
redemption provided that at the date of redemption,
at least 90% in principal amount of the 2018 CB and
2019 CB has already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

As such, the conversion option and the early
redemption options are considered as a single

derivative for fair value measurement purpose.

(b) On 31 August 2017, the Company issued 2020
convertible bond (the “2020 CB") with a principal
amount of HK$200,000,000. The maturity date of 2020
CB was 30 August 2020.

The 2020 CB was convertible at the option of the
bondholder at any time from and including the first
anniversary from its date of issue up to the 10th day
prior to the dates of maturity at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.35 per share (subject to adjustments).
Based on the initial conversion price, the 2020 CB was
convertible into approximately 571,429,000 ordinary
shares of the Company. The 2020 CB, if not converted,
would be redeemed at its outstanding principal amount
together with any interest accrued thereon. The 2020
CB carries interest at a rate of 8% per annum, which is
payable semi-annually on 18 June and 18 December
of each intervening year. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of the 2020 CB was 24.2% per

annum.

(a)

33. AIIRES @

(&)
o M — - \FABRES
T-NEHRRESMS
/NI S = TR S O
REASRERES RARGHE
UEhBERFTABEEZE @EI
HAIE 2 3R5N 288 BEIE R E K
TEZEBZF-N\FABRKE
SRZZFE-NFABKRES &
KRB BB —F— N\Frlk
BER_E-NFARRESE
DOONM AL AR EIR B
(0] 5% e s e s 8

L > R Ko R F R O IE AR
RAerRTEFEENNE—TE
THo

RZE—tFNA=+—8 "%«
@Téﬁ‘ﬁ_;ﬁ_;ﬁfﬁmﬁﬂﬁfﬁ%
((ZE_EFTHRKRES)

£ %87200,000,000 T _ T —
%ET%@MT%E@;U/HHEI%_%
—ZEFENA=+H-

TECEFMBRESESER
AR ZE-_EFOMRESE
THHRE—BEEZIEBEAN0H
BEREESE N YRR ERS
80358 (A FHRE) - ZF2Z
ZENMRESZYRIRRKRED
B 24 49571,429,00008 & A 5 &
BR - FAHABMN T
FOMBRESHREREELRS
HERHMTAESF EED =
%E:;EETT@HQ%%?QEB%E’J
MEFAE BFFIMN—TONE
flaJrE\fEF;E’\J/\E—f-/\EIEz—i—_
BtNA\BXffe _ T _ZF0ia
RESBEHIPNERENES
24.2%°
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—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)  (continued)

The fair value of the liability component was estimated
at the issuance date using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond if the conversion option was
not exercised. The conversion options embedded in
the convertible bonds were recognised as derivative
financial instruments and were measured at fair value on
initial recognition and remeasured at each subsequent
reporting date.

Owing to the fact that 2018 CB, 2020 CB and 2019 CB were
matured (as extended) without conversion on 16 May 2020,
30 August 2020 and 16 May 2021 respectively, the respective
outstanding balances of 2018 CB, 2020 CB and 2019 CB
in the

were re-classified as “Bank and other borrowings”

consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has no outstanding
options, warrants or other securities in issue which are
convertible into or giving rights to subscribe for, convert or
exchange into, any ordinary shares, as the case may be.

33. AR ES @

(b) (&

MMRIERETRE BEEHDH
AFEDEREUESEFRTS
MERREFETHRTUGE - BRA
AR ESHRREERERE RN
EEMITARRYTEIEFEZA
FTEFAERNBESRSAHRE
MEtEe

AR _Z-N\FIBRRES “F-F
FAMRESFR-FT-AFIHRERE
FONR_E_TERA+AE T
—EFNB=+BKRZE-—F51A
TRBEER TR - —F— /\EETT@
REF —E-_TFABRRES R
—NEJBRRESFBERNR f%ﬁ?%ﬁ
EEREENGEVBERRTEND
BRRTRAEMBES) -

bR EXPriRBEE SN R AT BB
RTENBRE BREIJIHEMEE
TR R A S SO T A S0 s B
B EAEER (RFPBRME) B

HithsE %5
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

33. AIIRES @

The movements of the liability and derivative components of FRAUMRBRES 2 BERTEBSHN
the convertible bonds for the year are set out below: BEFHWT
Liability
components
=Rig i)
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 January 2021 RIZZ—F—HF—H 143,980
Interest expenses FEMX 8,048

Reclassified to other borrowings

upon maturity

B ERDRERMES
(152,028)

At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022
and 31 December 2022

HW-—f=-—%+=-B=+—H-
—E__HF—HF—HRZZEZ=HF

+=B=+—H -
Represented by: &
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_-_+”"A=+—H
Current portion BENHAER 3 =

At 31 December 2021
Current portion

R_E_—F+"A=+—H
BIHERER > -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —Z__FF#H 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lﬁF

B MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

8=

34.
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—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

34. BAFEIEGR

2022 2021

- BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FAET

Fair value of financial guarantee PR ATFE 36,000 35,000

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided a corporate
guarantee in favour of an independent third party in respect
of a loan facility granted to an associate of the Group up
to an aggregate amount of approximately HK$204,960,000
(2021: HK$204,960,000), of which approximately
HK$36,166,000 (2021: HK$36,166,000) has been utilised.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the loss
allowances in respect of the financial guarantee of
HK$36,000,000 (2021: HK$35,000,000) in accordance with
ECLs model was made under HKFRS 9. The additional
allowances for ECLs of approximately HK$1,000,000 (2021:
HK$2,000,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Details of the loss allowance for
the financial guarantee contract are set out in note 6(b)(v) to
the consolidated financial statements.

RZEZZHF+ZR=+—H K&

ERETAEE—RHBELINE
TRERBISE=-ARREEEER
KA 75204,960,0008 % (CZ B - —
£ :204,960,000%87T)  HPEH
FB#936,166,0008T (ZE - —4F .
36,166,000 7T) °

RB&E"Z-_"F+"A=+—H1It
FE> IRESBMBREENFIRRZ
FEHEERBEEAMIEH B B
1RBYES IR B 7336,000,0008 7T (&
——4 :35,000,000/87T) cFEEAEE
S4BV EESMEE491,000,00058 7T (Z &
——%:2,000,00087T) ERNGEER
KAER - ARV BERENNEEE
BEHR GRS M BRI ET6(b)(v) 0
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35. DEFERRED TAX 35. IRIEFIE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the TR RIERIBEE, (BE) NEEHU
year are as follows: T

Fair value
adjustments
arising from A financial
acquisition of asset
a subsidiary at FVTPL Total
E W EE—
MWEBAE —HEATE
-3 4 HAEEZ

ATERE EMEE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTAERT FERT FAERT

At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—fF—F—H 6,148 (6,183) (35)
Charged to profit or loss for the year F R BH M

(note 15) (MyEE15) 15 - 15

Exchange difference ERELR 213 - 213

At 31 December 2021 and R_E_—F+°"A=1+—Hk

1 January 2022 “E-"F—A—H 6,376 (6,183) 193
Charged to profit or loss for the year FARB@ IR

(note 15) (F§5£15) - 403 403

Exchange difference EREE (150) - (150)

At 31 December 2022 RZFZ"%+ZRA=+-H 6,226 (5,780) 446
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35. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 35.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

IREFRIE (@)
MT%ﬁﬁé%$%ﬁ§§%¢$%
EIETRIBAE B DA -

2022 2021

—=E-C BT

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

Deferred tax liabilities FIEMIEEE 6,226 6,376
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE (5,780) (6,183)
446 193

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$1,740,323,000 (2021:
HK$1,739,090,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such losses. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of approximately HK$73,436,000 (2021: HK$72,202,000) that
will expire in 2025. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, deferred taxation has
not been provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference amounting to HK$4,433,000
(2021: HK$1,366,000) attributable to profits earned by the
Group's PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

REREPR  AEENRARIEERHIE
#91,740,323,0008 7T (ZE_—£:
1,739,090,00058 7T) > Al IR EH R 2
Mo R EERTDIEIERIEEE -
FFA KRS RIERER473,436,000
BT (B —F 172,202,000 7T) &5
BRI EZRAFI  EMRIES
BRI RS S -

RIZBEZZHFRZZEZ—F+2TA
=+—B > RxEEFEKE QS BERN
a8 A FE A B B 2= 24,433,000 7T (=

—1F 1,366,000 70) W ARELGRE
B MRPTIRIEERIE > TN AE
B RESITE GO TR EERERE M
HRMEERUENITEBELSZ E
@o
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e EE

2

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. RgZs
2022 2021
—§-C T
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ER TET
Authorised: ARE
1,000,000,000 (2021: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,0008% (ZZ=—% .
ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0008%) SR HEE
HK$0.20 (2021: HK$0.20) each 0.20%7w (22— : 0.20%87T)
2 EBK 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
342,572,857 (2021: 342,572,857) 342,572,857/ (CBZ—#F !
ordinary shares of 342,572,857%) R EE
HK$0.20 (2021: HK$0.20) each 0.207w (ZFZ—% : 0.20%87T)
ZEBR 68,515 68,515

The Group's objective when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Company reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce

debts.

The Company has the following externally imposed capital
requirements: (a) to maintain listing of shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange, the Company is required to have a
public float of at least 25% of its total issued share capital;
(b) to meet financial covenants attached to interest-bearing
borrowings.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would allow the
lenders to immediately call borrowings. During the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group breached
certain financial covenants, details of which are set out in
notes 2 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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37. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

182

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 59 of

the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group includes: (i)
the premium arising from the issue of new shares in
prior years; (i) the expense incurred in connection with
issuance of new shares in prior years; (i) dividends
declared and paid in prior years; and (iv) amount
transferred from share-based compensation reserve

upon exercise of share options.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess of paid-
in capital of the companies comprising the Group,
being proceeds from the issue of preference shares
without voting rights issued by a subsidiary to certain
independent third parties at an aggregate amount
of HK$14,593,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD1,864,000) credited to the capital reserve.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operation. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED HAEIBEIERERAT
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38.

2022 are as follows:

T2 F+ZA=+—HIFE
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 38. MMIBATINKRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December TENRBRABDN _E__F+_4

=+ —BHEENT

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of issued  Percentage of ownership interest/
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
AL/ WER/ TR/
e AMREEE BRITREHE EEEAEALT TEER
Direct Indirect
B Gk
Ace Leader (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of financing
B2 BB BRAR &R HK$300,000,000 (2021:100%)  services
300,000,000787¢ CBI-F:. RUSHER
WEER 100%)
China Wood Financial Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% - Provision of intercompany
Hong Kong Company Limited oy HK$10,000,000 (2021: 100%) management services
PAEMERARAT 1000000087  (CEZ—F: REERMEERS
BB &R 100%)
Beijing Tu An Car Rental Services ~ PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of car rental
Limited* (note) M RMB5,000,000 (2021: 100%) services
Frez EREERAEEAT B #5,000,0007 (CEZ—F: RESBHREHR
() SRR 100%)
Finest Achieve Limited BVI Ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
EEARAT ABRUKE USDT  (2021: 100%) REER
ETNEER (2
100%)
Hongshen Xi Wang Technology PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Investment holding
(Zhuhai) Company Limited* (note) ~ HE] RMB25,000,000 (2021:100%)  HEER
LRBLHH (55 ARAT (K2 ARH25 0000007 CB=—:
hamEs 100%)
China Wood Finance & Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited BE HK$1 (2021:100%)  HEZER
PAERMRREBRAT 1ATREER (CBZ-£:
100%)
China Wood Green Resources PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading and processing of
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* (note) el RMB10,000,000 (2021: 100%) furniture wood
PAREER (R BRAE () AE%10,000,00070 (CEZ-F:  GRARMRERMI
EIIEES 100%)
* For identification purposes only
note: These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability company (foreign- Mt ZEMBABLHRBEFRBEEZMAER
invested enterprise sole investment) under the PRC Law. NE QI ERECEEE) -
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38. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. MMIBATINKRE @

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, KABIEERDA ERFAFIAR QBB
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally BREDIERXEAERAFTEES
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial ‘Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁaaﬁfa/%f}_%ﬂﬁigﬁ
portion of the net liabilities/assets of the Group. To give Do ARBEER ?b%iﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁ@j
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the E’\J# BFE<LRES
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.
Details of the Group's subsidiary that has material non- BEEAFERETNAEERBR
controlling interest are set out below: BIFFEHINMT
Higgs Dynamics Limited Higgs Dynamics Limited
2022 2021
—g-C BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHTT
Percentage of equity interest held by A& ETEI IR (BB BRAH
non-controlling interest of Higgs (THEEEEY ) FEER R
Dynamics Zhuhai Company Limited ~ FisiREF DL :
("Higgs Dynamics”): 40% 40%
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“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Higgs Dynamics Limited (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial

38.

RHEAERIRE @
Higgs Dynamics Limited (%)
TRABHEARIB N ZHFER B E

information of Higgs Dynamics. The amounts disclosed are

before any inter-company eliminations:

KESHRHDEERYHEN 2S5

2022 2021

—F_-Z “B—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET FET

Total expenses k52 673 20

Loss for the year FANEE (673) (20)
Loss and total comprehensive income F AR K2 EUALEEE

for the year (673) (44)
Loss for the year allocated to DEEERSHENIIE

non-controlling interest of the TR 2 FETIE -

Higgs Dynamics: (269) (8)
Current assets REEE 102 1,580
Non-current assets JERENEE - 16
Current liabilities MEIEE (1,036) (1,903)
Net liabilities FEE (934) (307)
Accumulated losses of non-controlling ¥R HEFAE BTSN/

interest of Higgs Dynamics at the IR 2 RETETHE ¢

reporting date: 7.544 7,275
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEES) (FrA) /8 RERE

operating activities JFEE (61) 8
Net cash flows from investing activities & E ZBIFTRIR S M2 FEE - -
Net cash flows from financing activities FAE ZBNFTZIRE M E/F48 - -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRIBEEEY CRZL) 1Em

cash equivalents P (61) 8
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. HEREMERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (a) RMEBEFTBEEZEEHIR
activities
Bank and
Lease other
liabilities borrowings
R1TR
HEAR Hihfg &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT
At 1 January 2022 RZFE_ZH—H—H 2,390 797,978

Changes from financing cash flows nﬂ BIREREEH

Raising of new interest-bearing Bst R HEMES
other borrowings - 97,648
Capital element of lease rental paid B HEHENEARI S (916) =
Interest element of lease rental paid B &M EHF S &5 (136) =

Repayment of bank and BEIRTREMES
other borrowings - (43,996)
(1,052) 53,652

Other changes Hth &)

Interest charge MEZH 136 -
Increase in lease liabilities HEa/IE 209 =
Termination of leases RIETEE (539) =
Exchange difference PER=RE (150) (4,757)
(344) (4,757)
At 31 December 2022 RZE_—_F+"H=+—H 994 846,873
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. HFEREMERMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () MEITHELEZEBEHIER @

activities (continued)

Bank and
Lease other  Convertible
liabilities  borrowings bonds
RITR

HE&R Htgg kRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 W_E_—F—HF—H 1,813 638,843 143,980
Changes from financing cash flows B & IR & i & B &)
Raising of new interest-bearing SR REMER
other borrowings - 5,531 -
Capital element of lease rental paid BfJfEEHEHNERLSH (1,737) = =
Interest element of lease rental paid B {JfA & &M 255 (226) = =
(1,963) 5,531 -
Other changes HAth& &)
Interest charge AMEXTH 229 = 8,048
Increase in lease liabilities HESEEM 2,600 = =
Accrued interest FEEHRIR (3) = =
Termination of leases KIFFEE (344) = =
Reclassification of convertible bonds E#i ) $B o] iR B 5 = 152,028 (152,028)
Exchange difference ERELE 58 1,576 =
2,540 153,604 (143,980)
At 31 December 2021 RZE2_—F%+"B=+—H 2,390 797,978 =
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—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of

maRERERMNE®

(b) THERESFRH4EEE
%ﬂ ‘|')\:£$'é i/}lL%%E‘:‘E’]i

cash flows for leases comprise the following: BHEEUT :

2022 2021
-2 BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Within operating cash flows REEIREREN 1,833 4,726
Within financing cash flows RRIBEEREREN 916 1,737
2,749 6,463

These amounts relate to the following: ZEZRHETH AR
2022 2021
- E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Lease rental paid S EHRS 2,749 6,463

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. HAAE

On 21 April 2020, a writ of summons was issued by an
independent third party in Beijing, China as plaintiff against
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group namely Gt R E ZE 1k
¥ BIEAERAT) as defendant (the "Action”). The plaintiff
claimed for the repayment of principal and the accrued
interests of a loan purportedly owed by the defendant to
the plaintiff in the total amount of approximately RMB59.5
million since 2014 (the “Purported Loan”). The defendant
has denied the existence of the Purported Loan and has
requested forensic checks to be conducted to the loan
agreement produced by the Plaintiff to the People’s Court
in Chaoyang District, Beijing (the “Beijing Court”). The
Company has engaged a competent legal advisor to act for

its interests in respect of the Action.

R_EBE_EBFNA_+—H > PHEI
EN—RBIE=F ((FARE) HE
EEENBARIRERGCEEREE
RAF (EAKS) BHERSK (TF
é’AJ) HEEREEEBERSIHIET
B NOFEAERNREAaHNAR
%59 500,000t I EF A& K FEETF] 2
(MEBEMR) o%&%%%ﬁf%ﬂ%%ﬁ
FowERIEFFARBE ARER (MEE
Eh) SREME RN ERBRETE
BB - AATERTFAEREERE
REMMUAERNRITE
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41.

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

In January 2022, the Group received a judgement (the
“Judgement”) from the Beijing Court and ordered that
the defendant be required to pay a sum of approximately
RMB37.0 million plus damages of RMB7.5 million for breach
of contract. Immediately after the Judgement, the Group has
made an appeal to the Beijing No. 3 Intermediate People’s
Court JERME =F 4 AR AP against the Judgement.
In April 2022, the Beijing No. 3 Intermediate People’s Court
dismissed the Group's appeal against the Judgement. The

Group has taken steps to apply for retrial of the case.

A provision for claim in the amount of RMB44.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$54,490,000) was made
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no
member of the Group was engaged in any litigation or
arbitration or claims which would materially or adversely
affect the operations of the Company and no litigation,
arbitration or claim which would materially or adversely affect
the operations of the Company was known to the directors of
the Company to be pending or threatened by or against any
member of the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows:

40. ABEE @

41.

RIEZZHF—B AEEBEILFE
BBy (THIR)) » MBS EBZT
S EEH AR 137,000,0007c1 LEXNE
FHIEERE AR K7,500,0007T c ZpE
ARG AEBEMIRABIERTE=
FRARERIRE LR RS-
WA IbEmE =R ARZERRE T
NEBMEZH RN Lo AEBBEIRE
R A T o

REZSRE A R 1844,500,0007T FHERL
54,490,000 7T) EREBE_ZT_—4F
+-RB=1+—HIEEREE-

PREXFIIREEIIN R B _F+
R=1+—R ' x&BREXTABEI R
EERBERNDEBEELEETARNTHE
B hENRE AREARTE
ERTA AEBEAME AT TFEER
HMRTENEEZFHERARNEEESE
BERNAFFEZ IR PEHRE

BAREIE
REREHAREBTNEEREENE KR
AENT -

2022 2021
—F-C —B_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TATT
Capital contribution payable to MIELTRERERNZIHE
unlisted equity investments 33,843 36,735
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42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) As lessor

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as

2. WETHEZH

(a)

EREHAEA
HENBRREEEMRNOT

follows:
2022 2021
g T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TFAET
Within one year —FRN 5,309 4,586
In the second year REZF 3,035 =
In the third year RE= 1,310 =
Total 4BEt 9,654 4,586

The following table presents the amounts reported in

profit or loss:

TRIVHRIBmPIREAIEEE -

2022 2021
—E-C B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH7T
Lease income KEHEENHEERA
on operating leases 11,901 11,177
(b) As lessee by EAEFEA

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for motor vehicles and offices. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to these motor vehicles
and offices was approximately HK$148,000 (2021:
HK$392,000).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no
new lease being entered into and not yet commenced.
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

“E T+ A=+—HIEEE

e EE

2

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

these consolidated financial statements, the Group had

43.

RS R 5
MR A M RR M B R
HRBR BN AEEE RN

(a)

the following transactions with related parties during HET TR :
the year:
2022 2021
—¥_-- BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T TFAETT
Finance costs paid to Elcifudbrie s -R NN 27N
Mr. Deng ShiChao (note 1) (F5E1) 290 218
Finance cost paid to a related ~ [ARIE AT X (THIRE A
company (note 2) (fFsx2) 3,853 500
Rental expenses paid to a related MIFIEABZ(THNHEEREZ
company (note 1) (fF5E1) - 2,402
Rental expenses paid to a related MEHE QB AHHEEHE
company (note 3) (FFE3) 726 569
notes: B 5
1. Mr. Deng ShiChao is a director of the Group's subsidiaries and 1. NI _FR_ZT-—F 5 HiY

the related company in 2022 and 2021.

2. Mr. Lyu NingJiang, a director of the Company, is also a director
of the related company in 2022 and 2021.

3. IEREHESHHEHEBRAE, a related company of the
Company being owned by Mr. Hu YongGang, a non-executive
director of the Company in 2022 and 2021.

Personal and corporate guarantees provided by the

immediate and ultimate holding company, and the

ultimate controlling party of the Company, details are

set out in the notes 31 to the consolidated financial

statement.
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid or payable to the

43. FIERR S @
() ZNEEBFEESIEAEZEHB
%Eﬁxﬁﬁ%$@1%$z$

Company'’s directors, is as follows: BT
2022 2021
-2 BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Short term employee benefits AEEREESEF 2,151 1,627
Post-employment benefits BRI R EA 18 18
Total compensation paid or payable to HFZEIE A B (IS ER
key management personnel BN & 42 %8 2,169 1,645
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note EEHNNE—FTEFBENGEHMH
13 to the consolidated financial statements. WRMEET13 0

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

44,

AT TR

BERARBNKRESHARNYHFRRE

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RERIT :
2022 2021
- BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment MM E R 23 23
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments FETRRIE 1,408 5,990
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS I B AR 7B 81 59
Bank balances IR1TAEER 534 124
2,023 6,173
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BMBImRRME

2

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44. A ATIREFEAR AR @

THE COMPANY (continued)

2022 2021
—E-H BT
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FEx BT
Current liabilities nEaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTI B A B = IE 27,385 29,539
Other payables and accruals HMERIE K st R IE 391,406 297,127
Other borrowings HMEE 688,528 630,701
Financial guarantee Rt 36,000 35,000
1,143,319 992,367
Net current liabilities mENBEEEE (1,141,296) (986,194)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHEE (1,141,273) (986,171)
NET LIABILITIES BEPHE (1,141,273) (986,171)
Capital and reserves B R#E
Share capital ZiS 68,515 68,515
Reserves (note) HE (s (1,209,788) (1,054,686)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B2 s hl (1,141,273) (986,171)
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and REEGNR_Z-_="F=-HB=-+/\H
are signed on its behalf by: HETHTIHINEERREE !

Lyu NingJiang
BEI
Chairman and Executive Director

TEFRATEE

Hu YongGang
Ak A

Non-executive Director

FHITEF
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44.

45.

46.

194

—ECCHATHA=t+—HIEEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

44, IR ATRIBIFEAR AR @)

note: B 5T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABZHEEBRENT :
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B2 Rt @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET F#ET
At 1 January 2021 poE-—&E—F— 1,059,713 (2,062,776) (1,003,063)
Loss and total comprehensive income  FR SRR 2 EINALZE
for the year - (51,623) (51,623)
At 31 December 2021 and WZE—F+ZA=+—HK
at 1 January 2022 - "F—HF—H 1,059,713 (2,114,399) (1,054,686)
Loss and total comprehensive income — FAE51E R 2 EUALREE
for the year - (155,102) (155,102)
At 31 December 2022 WZE-ZZ#+=ZA=+—H 1,059,713 (2,269,501) (1,209,788)
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 45. IwREHRRER
Reference is made to the disclosure in note 1 to the ZRMIR S M BRERM 1P F IR EE
consolidated financial statements, in terms of the (i) NEREMVEMREALEENZTERER
appointment of the joint provisional liquidators for BENGMEM ; R(INEEELIBRN
restructuring purposes only; (ii) restructuring and (iii) BE - ARBFBTHELASUAEAERR
suspension of trading of the shares of the Company. Further BIREAREERMEARLLMEEN
announcement(s) will be made by the Company to update EER -
the shareholders and investors of the Company in relation to
any developments of the aforementioned matters.
S gy
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 46. LEBREF

Certain of the comparative figures have been restated to
conform with current year's presentation. The changes mainly
included separate disclosure of items under “deferred tax

assets” and “deferred tax liabilities”.

ATHER#F E%EﬁLX@iZMEFE’J%

IEﬁJXJE’zr Lﬁlﬁﬁ{ = E’J%?‘ﬂﬁi
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEMHEE

A summary of the Group's results for the last five financial years
and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2022, 2021, 2020, 2019 and 2018 as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below. The summary does

not form part of the audited financial statements.

TYHINAEBRBERBERBREERNE
ERANEERANR_E__FE-"B_-_—F "
EZTEFZIE-AERIZE—N\F+IA
=+ HHNEERBENHE BEAERT
HREEHELEZMHREKR AP EL R
BRREZITBRERN—ED o

Year ended 31 December

#E+-_A=1+—-HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—RITE TE2C-F IZERIZF ZZ2-hE ZZ2N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E
REVENUE Wz 145,378 116,067 24,304 654,318 1,097,593
Cost of sales and SHE AN R AR VRS
services rendered (121,266) (101,651) (19,906) (614,262)  (1,031,644)
Gross profit EF 24,112 14,416 4,398 40,056 65,949
Other income, gains and Ht A~ Wz & (B548)
(losses), net B EE 3,139 (48,192 (374,992) (50,584) 334,068
Allowances for ECLs on FEUIR R B R HA
trade, loan and other EWFIETEIEE
receivables, net BIREHPE (35,578) (2,850)  (348,305)  (382,779)  (198,039)
Impairment on amount due B —FEGERBHER(E
from a joint venture - = = = (15,003)
Impairment on amount due  EW—FEME R B RIRER(E
from an associate - - - (8,783) -
Provision for financial guarantee B F5{E{REE (1,000) (2,000) (7,200) (25,800) =
Selling and distribution HERDHER
expenses (981) (386) (2,922) (7,860) (7,641)
Administrative expenses THER (22,443) (15,762) (44,617)  (100,517)  (123,478)
Other expenses HMhpx - (101,823) (212,513) (6,823) (8,798)
Finance costs B (113,738)  (117,730)  (120,129)  (158,603)  (156,100)
Share of results of: M4
Joint ventures SV -UNSI - = (1,091 (551) 4,183
An associate —EBE AR - - - (4,480) (107,938)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRIRATES 1B (146,489)  (274,327) (1,107,371)  (706,724) (212,797
Income tax (expense)/credit FrieM (%) /g% (3,913) (233) 42,952 (14,350) (27,651)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEMFHEE

Year ended 31 December

#E+_A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C 2 —F —ZTF —T—HE _Z-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FHET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (150,402) (274,560)  (1,064,419) (721,074) (240,448)
Attributable to: UFE RS :
Owners of the Company KATER A (150,133) (274,550)  (1,055,985) (691,607) (226,976)
Non-controlling interests JEERR R (269) (10) (8,434) (29,467) (13,472)
(150,402) (274,560)  (1,064,419) (721,074) (240,448)
As at 31 December
®+=-B=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E_C S —F —ZTF —T—HE _ZT-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHAT FAT FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 196,155 230,825 163,211 1,150,016 2,039,568
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEa%E (1,599,007)  (1,494,644)  (1,149,710)  (1,131,598)  (1,292,757)
(1,402,852) (1,263,819) (986,499) 18,418 746,811
196 CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED AR ARAF]



Z|
ST
| CHINA WOOD INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LIMITED

mAEl PARERIZERFR AT




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	管理層討論及分析
	董事的詳細履歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收入表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務摘要
	封底



